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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the rlembers of Kolkata International Convention Centre Limited

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

\We have. audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of I(olkata Internati.onal Convention Centre Limrtetl
rvhich comprise the Balance sheet as at N{arch 31,2025 the Statement of Profit and Loss, includinl; the starement of
Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equiry for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a sumrnary of significant accoundng policies ancl other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid In4 AS
financial statements give the information tequired by the Cr:mpanies Act,2013 ("the -\cr") in rhc n-liylrrcr- s,r rcrlrur.tl
and give a true and fair vierv in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in Inclia, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at N'farch 31',2025, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash fl1;'uvs and the
changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial staternents in accordance rvith the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as

specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are furtfier described in the
'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. \We are independenr
of the Company in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered Accounrants of Inclia
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions <lf
the Act and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
recluirements and the Code of Ethics. \We believe that the auclit eviclence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to ptovide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Infotmation Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other informatjon. The other informatjon
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the Ind -\S financial staremenrs arrcl

our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS flnancial statements does not cover the other information and lve de not express any frrrm
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connecrion with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, orrr responsibiliry is tcl read the other inf<rrmation
and, in doing so, consider whethet the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial staternents or our
kno"vledge obtained rn the audit or othenvise appears to be materially misstateci.

If, based on the rvotk we have petformed, we conclude that there is a materialmisstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. \7e have nothing to report in this regarcl.

Responsibilities of Management for the Ind AS Financial Statemenrs

The Companv's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 1,34(5) of the Act with respec to
the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a tflre and fair view of the hnancial posit-ion, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accor6ance
with the accounting principles genetally accepted in India, inclucling the Inclian Accountilq Sranclarcls (Irrcl .\S)
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specified under section 133 of the Act read with [the Companies (Indian Accounting Stanclards) Rules, 2015, as
amended]' This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting recorcls in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for pr-eventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounring policies; making judgmenrs and esumates rhar are
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, rhat
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy ancl completeness of the accounting recorcls, relevanr r() the
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and, fur vierv and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In prepating the Ind AS frnancial statements, managemenr is responsible for assessing the Company,s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relatecl to going concern and using ttre going concern
basis of accounring unless management either intends to Iiquidate the Company or ro cease operarions, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Oul objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about rvhether the Incl AS financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an aud.itor's report that inclucles orr opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an auclit conducted in accordance with
SAs will always detect a mateial misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggte€pte, they could reasonably be expecred t9 influence rhe economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional fudgment and maintain pr-ofessional scepticism
throughout the audit.'We also:

' Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, rvhether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence rhat is sufficie.t
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

' Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in ordet to design audit proce6ures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3X, of the Act, rve are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

' Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

' Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whethet a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditigns that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclucle that a marerial
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related 6isclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusigns are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events r>r cgnclitions may
cause the Company to cease to condnue as a going concern.

' Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the undedying transactions and events in a
finnner that achieves fair presentation.

'We 
communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing

of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control rhat rve identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance rvith a statement that we have complied with relevant erhical
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reqlurements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships ancl other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

t' As-required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) order, 2020 ("the Order'), issued bv the Central Governmenrof India in terms of sub-section (1 1) of sectio " i+l of the A.t,'*. give in the '.Annexure A,, a statement on thematters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As requiled by Section 143(3) of the Act, we reporr that:

(") !1 have sought and obtained all the informauon and explanarions which ro rhe best of our kn.rvledge and
belief were necessary for the pwposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of 
.account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it

appears from our examination of those books;

O The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss_including the Statement of other Comprehensive
rncome, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Change. L fq,riay dealr with by this Rep.rt are in
agreement vzith the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the afotesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specifiecl
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Ruleq ZO1.5,as amended;

G) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on Ntarch 31,,2025 taken .n record
by the Board of Directofs, none of the dirss1e15 is disqualified as on March 31,2025 from being appointed
as a director in terms of Section 164 e) of the Act;

(0 lrith respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the C.mpany with
reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness rrf such controls, refer to .ur
separate Report in "Annexure B', to this report;

(g) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us. the
company has not paid or provided any managerial remuneration as defined by the provisigns of the Section
1,97 of the CompaniesAct, 2013.

(h) With tespect to the othet matters to be included in the Auclitor's Report in accor6ance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 201,4, as amended in ow ,rpirrio., and to the best of our informarion
and according to the explanations given to us:

i' The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;ii 
;[::ffiTJr,:i*::#ffii:1,::l* -rm contracts incruding derivative contracts ior which there

There were no amounts rvhich rvere requirecl to be transferred to the Investor Educatir>n and
Protection Fund by the Company.

4 The Nlanagement has tepresented that, to the best of its knorvledge and belief, no funds (rvhich
are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been aJvanced 6r loanecl <>r investetj
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person or entity, inclucling foreign entity ("Intermecliaries,), with the
undetstanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwi.., tf,^t the Intermediary sha[-rvhether,
directly ot indirecdy lend or invest in other p.r.orr. or entities identified in any manner rvhatsoever
by ot on behalf. gf _,h. lompany ('Uitimate Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee, securiry or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiades;

b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which
are Inaterial either.individually or in the aggregate) hav_e been receiiecl by rhe Cr>mpany fr., or-,1,
person or entity, including foreign entity ('Funding Parties"), with the unclerstanding, rvhether
recotded in writing or otherwise, that the_Company shall, wtrether, directly or indireciy, lend 6r
invest in other persons or entities identified in- any manner whatsoever by or u' U.fr^if of the
funding Patty ("Ultirnate Beneficiaries') or pr<ivide any guarantee, secudry or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Benef,rciaties;
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Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has causecl us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ri) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and @) above,
contain any material misstatement.

The company has not paid or declared any dividend during the year, accordingly the provision of
section 1,23 of the Act are not applicable to the company.

The Company has used a third party ooerated accoundng softrvare for maintaining its br16ks .f
account, based on examination of service organization conffols report (SOC ,.p,lrg, rve n6ted
that the audit trail fearure of the said softrvar. ,rr". enabled ancl operat.a ihr<rughtut rhe year for
all relevant transacdons recorded in the softnvare. Further, durin[ the course .ii,rrr, 

^.,,lit, 
basecl

on the examinatiol of ych rePort, we dicl not come across 
^.ry 

irrrtrrr.e of audit traii feature
being tampered with' ,\dditionally, based on examination of SOC report, the audit trail in respccr
of such software has been recorded and presewed in full corrrplirr.. with the requirement.s of
secd'on 128(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of the f,rnancial year ende<i Nlarch 31,
2025. Further, in respect of the financial years endld l\,Iarch 3'!.,2024, in the absence of SOC
r€port for the period from April 7,2023 to Decemb er 37,2023,we are unable to assess whether
the audit trail has been preserved as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

For and on behalf of
ARG & Co LLP

a

No.521269

o

ICAI Firm R.gr. No: 010630N/N500036
Place: Gurugram
Date:23.04.2025
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"Annexure A" to the Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Kolkata International Convention
Centre Limited, on the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended on March 3lr20ZS.

Based on the audit procedutes performecl for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the true and fair vierv of theInd AS financial statements of the company and considering the informatio., ,rrd explanations given ro us and bo.ks
of accounts and other records provided to us during the normal course of audit, rve hereby ,.p,r.t tlrat,-

') In respect of Company's Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

") Since the Company does not have any Property, Plant and Equipment anci Intangible Assets, hence reporringunder clause 3 (, (") (,\) and @) of the ori.i is not applicable to the company.

b) Since the Company does not have any Property, Plant and Equipment, reporting under clause 3 (0 O) of the
order is not applicable to the company.

c) Since there.is no immovable properw in the company, hence reporting under clause 3 (i) (c) of the .rder is
not applicable to the company.

d) Since the Company does not have any Property, Plant and E<luipment (including rights of Use Assets) orboth, reporting under clause 3 (, (O of the order l. not applicable to the Company.

e) According to information & explanations and representations given to us by the management, no
proceedings has been initiated.or are pending againstthe comparrylo, holding any b.rrami pr,r"p.rry under
Benami Transactions (?rohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder

ii)

(^)

@)

iii)

19

o

vi)

The Company does not have inventory during the year. Hence the provision of clause 3(u)(a) of the orcler is
not applicable to the company.

According to the information & explanation given to us, the Company has not been sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of t 5 crore, in aggregate, at ?fly points of time cluring the year, from banks 9r
financial institutions on the basis of security of current u.r.t, and hence reporti.rg undet clause 3(ii)(b) of
the Order is not applicable.

According to the information & explanation given to us, cluring the vear the C6mpanv has r:rr nraclc
investments, provided any security or guarantee or granted any loans or adrra.rc.s in ihe nature of 1lans,
secuted or unsecured to companies, fums and limited liability partnerships or other parries crverctl.
Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3 (-) (r) to (f) of the order are not appicable ro the C.-pon1,.

There are no loans,.investments, Suarantees and security in respect of which pr6vision of secti.n 1g5 and
186 of the Companigs,_{9t 2013 are applicable and accordingly the reqrir6lngnr to report on clause 3(iv) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the infotmation & explanation given to us, Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts
which are deemed to be deposits. Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order i. ,r.,i"ppicable.

N{aintenance of cost records has not been-specified by the Central Government unilcr sub-secrjon (1) of
secdon 148 of the Companies Act, 2073 for the business activities carried out by the Company. Hence,
reporting under clause (-) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

In respect of statutory dues,

4 According to the records of the company, the company is generally regular in depositing undispured
statutory dues including provident fund, employees' stat; iniurance, income-tax, sales-tax, seruii tax, dufi, of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutoq, dues applicable t. it.
According to the infotmatjon and explanations given to us, no und.isputed amounts payable in respect of
income tax, wealth tax, sewice tax, sales tax, customs duq,, excise <iut1', valu. added tax antl cess wcr€
outstanding, as at NIarch 31',2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b) As per the infotmation and explanations given to us, no clues referrecl in sub-clause (a) are pen4ing which
have been not deposited on account of any dispute.
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"-) According to the information & explanation given to us, there were no transactions relating to previclusll,unrecorded income that have been surrendereJ or disclosed as income during the year rn the ,'"* 
^rr.rr*".r,,under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). Accordingly, the reguireme.rt?o report on clause 3(r.iii) of theorder is not applicable to the company.

According to the information & explanation given to us, the company has not taken any loans or otherborrowing, hence reporing under clause 3GXr) of the order is ,rot applicable.

According to the information & explanation given to us, the Company has not been declared,,villful defaulterby any bank or financial institution or government authority.

According to the information & explanation given to us, the company has not taken any term l.an during
the year and there are no outstanding terT.loars at the beginning ;rr,h. year a.nd.h..rce, ,eporting under
clause 3(L'r)G) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information & explanation given to us, on an overall examination of the financial
statements of the Company, no short term funds has been raised bv the company during the year and hence,
reporting under clause 3(L9(d) of the c)rder is not appl-icable.

The company does not have any associate, ioint venture or subsidiary company. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(o)G) of the order is nor applicable to the company.

The company does not have any associate, ioint venture or subsidiary company. Accordingly, repoting
under clause 3(oxq of the order is not applicable to the company.

According to the information & explanation given to us, the company has not raised money by rvay of initial
public offer or further-public offer (includingdebt instrumenrs). Acctrdingly, the provisi.n of clause 3(x)(a)
of the order is not applicable.

Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of share or convertible debentures.
Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(.)O) of the ordei is not applicable.

(') To the best of our knowledge andAccording to the information & explanation given ro us, n6 fraud by
the Company or any fraud on the Company has been noticed u. r.pn.Ld during'ihe year.

(b) luring the yeat, no report under sub-section (12) of secrion 1,43 of the Companies A1, 2013 has beenfiled by cost auditors/secretarial auditor or by us in Form ,\DT-4 as prescribed un4er Rule 13 ofCompanies (Audit and Auditors) Rrrl., 2014 with the Central Governmcnr.

G) According to the information & explanation given to us, no whistle blower complaints has been
received during the year by company.

In our opinion and according to the inf^ormatign & explanation given to us, the company is not a Nidhi
company. Hence the provision of clause 3(*) (") to (c) ol the order is not applicable to ,h. **purry.

According to the information & explanations glven to us, all transactions defined under Section 1gg of theAct are in compliance with Section 188 anJdetails of these transactions are properly clisclosed in the
Financial Statements. Further, Section 1,77 of the Act is not applicable to the Co-pa.ry.

According to the information & explanatiolr, given to us, company does not have an internal auciit s,,s1sm
and is not requited to have an internal audit syitem under prorrisiorrs of Section 138 of the Act. Accordingly
teporting under clause 3 (xiv) (a) and (b) "f the Order is ,oi applicable to the company.

In our opinion the Company has not. entered into any non-cash transactions 'nvith its Directors or persons
connected rvith its dfuectors as referred under provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013.

x)

^)

.)

xr)

b)

c)

e)
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"-,
^)

b)

c)

d)

x"ii)

xvlii)

xix)

In our opinion and according to the information & explanation given to us, the company is not recluired tobe registeted under section 45-IA of the Reserves nank of Indila Act, 1.934. Accordi.rgly, the provision of
clause 3(xvr) (a) of the order is not applicable to the company.

The Company is flot engaged in any Non-Banking Financials_ or llousing Finance activities Accor<iingly, therequirement to report on clause 3(xvr)(b) is not apf[cable to the co.rrp".rly.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in regulations made by Reserwe Bank ,f India.
Accordingly, the requirement to report in clauie :("*)G) is not applicable to the Company.

The Group has one core Investment company as part of the Group. Hence, the re<luirement to report on
clause 3Gvixd) of the order is not the applicable to th. ..r-pu.ry.

The Company has not any incutred cash losses during the financi al year and in immediately preceding
frnancialyear.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. Acc.rdingl),, the
requirement to report in clause 3(".") is not applicable to the C.r-pa.,y. 

'

on the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in Note 1B and Note 27 to the Frnancial staremenrs,
the ageing and expected dates of realizaaon of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Dir.ectors
and management plans and based on our examination of the eviden..-r.rpporting the assumptions
and considering the Company's cuffent liabilities exceeds the current assets Uy <1,OAS.86 lacs, the
Company has obtained the letter of financial support from the Holding Company, nothing has
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that Company is no1 .rprll" lf -..tiig it,'ljabiJities, 

existing at the date of balance sheet, as and when they falt due within^a period of o.re"y"u,
from the balance sheet date.

\X/e, further state that this is not an assurance as to the future viabfity of the Company and our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report arrd *e neither girr. ,rry guarantee
nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the baiance sheet
date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

According to the infotmation & explanations glven to us, company is not required to make any expendirure
under co{porate social responsibility under provision of section 135 of the Aci. Acc<lrdingly, th. prrvisi.n .I
clause 3("4 (^) & @) of rhe order is not applicable ro the compan\'.

This clause of the order is applicable to consolidated financial statements. The audit report under reference is
on the standalone financial statements of the company. Consequently, clause (xxi) of paragraph of the order
is not applicable to the company.

xx)

*"i)

For and on behalf of
ARG & Co LLP

Er- kA,

No.521269

\
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ICAI Firm R.gr. No: 01 0630N/N500036
Place: Gurugram
Date: 2tl0ttl2S
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ttAnnexure - B, to the Auditors'Report

ffil'Jr:i.:Hf::ryal 
Financial controls under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 ofthe companies

In coniunction with our audit of the Incl AS financial statements .f the company as of and for the year ended l,Iarch
;:"3:fli"It.H:;#;'"l.tte intemal financial controls over rinan.iul ,.p.,rtirs ;a'Kolkaia rnternational

Management's Responsibirity for Internar Financiar controls

The Respective Boatd of Directors ofthe company, are responsible for estabrishing and maintaining internal financialcontrols based on the internal c.nttol o.r., firrrr.i^t r.poitirrg criteria establishe<i by the Corrp"ry considering theessential components of internal control stated in the G..idrrr.. Note on Auclit of Internal Financial Controls overFinancial Reporting issued by the Institute of Charterecl Accountants of India ("ICAI). These responsiblitjes includethe design' implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that r.vere operating effectivelv forensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including aclherence to company,s policies, the safeguarclingof its assets, the prevention and detectjon of ftauds and errors,-th. ,..* aclr and **pr.*ress of the aciountingrecords' and the timely preparation of reliable hnancial information, 
". 

,.qrired under the companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

out responsibility is to exptess an opinion on the c.mpany's internal f,rnanciar controls .ver frnancial reporting basedon o,r audit' \7e conducted our audit in accordance r,rith t-he Gui<lance Note on Audit of Internal Financial contr.lsover Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note') issued by ICAI ancl the standards on Auditing, issuecl by ICAI aniideemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the companies Act, 201,3,to the extent applicable to an audit .finternal financial controls, both issued by the i.rrtitut. of chartere,l Accountanrs of Inclia. Th.se Standarcls and thcGuidance Note require that we comply with-ethical requkements ancl plan and perform the audit t<l obtain reasonableassurance about whether adequate internal financial conttols orr., firrar.ial reporting was established and maintainedand if such conrrols operated effectively in all material respects.

out audit involves petforming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financialconftols system ovet ftnancial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our auclit of internal financial controls overfinancial reporting included obtaining an understTfug ofLternal financial controls over financial reporring, assessingthe risk that a material weakness exiits, and testing 
^rld 

.,r.d,r^ting the design and operating effectiveness of internalcontrol based on the assessed risk. The pro..i.o.., selec.ted i.p.rd "i trr-. auditor,s judgrnent, including theassessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial staternents, whether 6ue to fraud or effor.

we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audiropinion on the Company's internal f,tnancial controls system over financial teporting.

Meaning of Intemal Financial controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over Frnancial reporting is a process designed to provicle reasonable assuranceregarding the reliability of financial reporting and th. pr.p^i"tion of hnanciaistatements for external purposes inaccordance with generally accepted accounl.rg pr.r.rples. A company's intemal financial control over financialrepoting includes those policies and proced.rti-, thut (1) perrain to^tho maintenance of records thar, in reasonabledetail' accurately and faitly reflect the ttansactions and dispositions of the assets of the compan)r; (2) provideteasonable assurance that ttansactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of ftnancial statements inaccordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and thrir...rpt, ,ra .*p.rrclirures of the company are beingmade only in accordance with authoizaa# 
"f 

^*rrrrg.-.nt 
and directots of the company; and (3) providereasonable assurance regarding ptevention- or timely d.t.Jtion of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of thecompany's assets that could have a material effect.rn th. Ind AS financial statemenrs.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of intemal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibilitv .fcollusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due tu .ir,r, or fiaucl may .ccur andnot be detected' Also, proiections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to funreperiods are subiect to the dsk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may bec.me inadequatebecause of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compl-iance wirh the policies <>r procedures may cleteri'rate.
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Opinion

In out opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financialreporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporinq were 
"p.rr*f.?i..,i"-.ry ,. ,t ntrr. h 31,,2025,based on the internal conffol ,ver financial reporting criteria estabiished by the company considering the essentialcomponents of internal control stated in the Guictance Note on Audit of Internal Financial controls c)ver FinancialReporting issued by the ICAI.

For and on behalf of
ARG & Co LLP

No.
ICAI Firm R.gr. No: 010630N/N500036
Place: Gurugram
Date; ). Zloh l>S
UDrN: i#t zt?ou t 1ArsD k 3

*'
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KOLKATA INTERNATIONAL CONVENTION CENTRE LIMITED
CI N No. ti7 0l0lD[2005PLC137339

Regd. office: l-E Jhandewalan Extension, Naaz cinema complex, Neu'Delhi -110055
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025

I. ASSETS

Non current assets
(a) I)cfcrrcd tax asscts(nu)
(b) \on currcrlt tirx assets (nct)

Current assets

(a) fiinancial asscts

(i) t.ash and cash ccluivalents
(ii) ( )thcr bank balanccs

(iii) ( )ther financial irssers

Total Assets

II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equiw
(a) I:qurrr shzrre crprtal
(b) ( )thcr cqurn-

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial liabilitres

(i) l'radc pavable

-J'otal outstanding dues t>[micro enterprises and small cnterprises
ilirtal tlutstanding dues of crcditors other than micr() enterpnses and smirll entcrprises

(ii) ()ther financial liabilities
(b) ( )ther current habrhties

Total Equin and Liabilities

13.31

0.10

13.11 76.93

-)

+ 63.72

5

6

7

-+. l0
9.01

0.10

8

9

5.01

(.r.0e3.87)

1.2+

-+,100.92

0.1 I

5.01

(+,095.41)

l0

11

12

1.21

0.05

1,165.92

0.12

13.41 76.93

Summirn' of \latenal 2rcc()unting policies 2

-l'hc 
irccornpan\tng notcs frrrms an integral p:rrt ()[ these f,rnirncrnl stiltemcnts

Based on ()ur rep()rt of cr-ct datc attachcd.

l'or iutd on behirlf o[
ARG & Co. LLP
(.hartcrcd TS

(IiR\

['or and orr bchirlf of thc lJoard of dircctors , r f
Kolkata International Convention Centre Limited

Kunal

CHART[.1

E1-!

*

\ \o.: 521

Satish Kumar Tvagi
l)l\:00003-li1
I )irector

I)l\i: 0892130{

[)irector

Place: Gurugram
Date: 23.04.25

h

Particulars Note No.
As at

3ll[,.[arch2O25

(t in lakhs)

As at
3l}darch?-024

500036,



KOLKATA INTERNATIONAL CONVENTION CENTRE LIMITED
CIN No. U7 0101DL2005PLC137339

Regd. Office: l-E Jhandewalan Extension, Naaz Cinema Complex, New Delhi -110055
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025

in lakhs

I. Income
( )ther income

II. Expenses
Finance cost
( )ther expenses

13

1-+

15

I6

l7

3.54 298.45
Total Income

Total Expenses

3.54 298.45

0.47

1.53

r52.43

1.91

2.00 154.34

III. Profit before tax for the year(I-II)

fV. Tax expenses

Deferred tax

V. Profit/(Loss) after tax for the year (III-IV)

VI. Other comprehensive income
-\ i)Items that vudl not be reclassified to proht and loss

ii)Income tax relating to irems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
B i)Items rhat will be reclassified ro profir or loss

ii)lncome tax relating to irems that rvill be reclassified to profir or loss

Total comprehensive income/(Loss) for the year

vII. Earnings/(Loss) per equity share( face value of Rs l0 per share)
Basic and diluted

1.54 t44.tt

241.12

t.s4 (100.01)

1.54 (100.01)

3.08 (1ee.82)

Summan- of \Iaterial accounring policies 2

The accompanving notes forms an integral part of these frnancial statements

Based on oLlr report of even date attached.

For and on behalfof
ARG & Co. LLP
Chartered -\ccounrants
(FRN : 01 \500036)

For and on behalf o[ rhe Board o[ directors oi
Kolkata International Convention Centre Limited

Kunal

)Iembership o.:521269

Place: Gurugram
Date: 23.04.25

& Satish Kumar Tyagi
DI\: 00003431

Director

Pankai Rastogi
DI\ : 0892130-+

Director

h

Paniculars Note No.
For the year ended 31

March 2025

&w



KOLKATA INTERNATIONAL CONVENTION CENTRE LINIITED
CIN No. U70101DL2005PLC 137339

Regd. Office: l-E Jhandewalan Extension, Naaz Cinema Complex, New Delhi -110055
cash Flow statement for the year ended 3l March z02s

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit,' (l.oss) bctirre tax

Adiusted for:
-lnterest Income on fixcd deposits

-lnterest expcnsc on borrr:u'rngs

-l)ror-rsion frrr doubttul receir-ables

-.\mount t'rrtten oif
-L'nclaimed balance and excess pro\-lsr()n t'rittcn otT
-lnterest ()n tncome tax refund

( )perrltrng profit. (loss) befrrrc rr'orktng c;rpiral changes

Working capital adiustments:
-(l ncrease),' [)ccreir.se rn current lnd n()n-cLlrrenr trade payables
- l ncreAse,/ ([)ectease) rn (,urrent and non-current t-rnancral fiabr]itres

Cash flow from/(used in) Operating Activities
-Drrect'l'axes l)ard

Net cash flow from/(used in) Operating Activities

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest recerved on t-rxed deposrts

Proceeds ,' (lnvcstmcnt) rn Bzrnk l)eposrts
Net cash used in Investing Activities

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from current borr<,u,rngs (net)
Reparment of current borrou'rngs (net)
Repar-ment of other t'inancrirl habihn'

lnterest pard (lncludrng'l'l)S)
Net cash flow from/(used in) Financing Activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

()penrng cash and cash eclun alcnts (Refer notc n<>. 5)

(.losrng cash and cash ecluivalcnrs (Refer note no. 5)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

I54

( ).37)

(2.16)

in

l4-t l I

(633 24)

152.43

334.19

9,1 55.r lr r

(fi,155 t ttt;

(1.se)

(rt rt5)

(1.e1)

(1 r,a)

(t(t.11

(13,247.99)

(63.61)

64.83 (13,311.61)

9.38 16,419.13

(65.tto;

(65.00) (3.106.53)

9.2r 0.99

4.1t 1

13.31

(13,246 (ltt)

0.37

9.()1

633.24

15,795.99

341.tttt
(2,913.53)

(53+.tttt;

3.1 l

4.ltt
9.21 0.99

Other disclosures required by Ind-AS 7:

in Liabilities from activities

lst April 2024

Procecds Repalment of current borros'rng(\et)
'['ransactr<)n 

c( )st zrdlustmcnt

lnterest expenses (excludrng tnterest accrued but not due)

Interest Pzud

Balance as on 31 March 2025

ln

lst April 2023

Repavment of current borros'rng(Net)
'l-ransactrr)n c()st adjustment

Interest e\pcnses (cxcludrng rntcrest accrued but n<>t due)

Interest I)rrid

Balance as on 31 March 2024

(B) Changes in Liabilities arising from Investing activities
()ther than those drscl0scd tn (.irsh t-lo\. statement, fhere ls n() norl-cash rnovcment ln tnvesttng irctl\-rtrcs

2,954.1o

(2,512,53)

152.43

(53.+ ()( ))

(0.00)

Summan' oi \latcnal acc.runturg policies (Refer note no. ?)

'l'he accompanring tl()tcs firrtns rrrl rntegrill part oIthese fini'rncial statements

Based ()n ()ur rcp()rt oFeven dare arrached.

['or and orr bch:rli oi
ARG & Co. LLP
(.hirrtcrccl

(l;lt\ r)

Kunal

Place: Gurugram
Date: 23.01.25

I',rr.rnd,,n brh:rl[,rt tlrc l]o.rrcl oidrrcctors of
Kolkata International Convention Centre Limited

,i

Satish Kumar Tvagi
l)l \: I r( l( r( )3-li I

I )rrcctor

Pankaf Rastogi

I)l\ ttt3tl21 r,,t
I)trector\ o.:

t



KOLKATA INTERNATI ONAL CONVENTION CENTR E LINIITED
CIN No. U70l0lDL2005PLC137339

Regd. office: l-E Jhandewalan Extension, Naaz Cinema Complex, Neq. Delhi -110055
statemenr of changes in Equin for the vear ended 3l l\Iarch 2025

A. Equin share capital*

(t in lakhs)

Iiquitv share capital 5.o l 5.01

Bquin slruc cirpirrrl 5.() I 5.o l

B. Other equin

Balance as at April 01,2021
(4,09s.41) ({,09s.41)'lirtal comprcl-rensite income oi fhc vear

t.5+ 1.5.+
Balance as at 3l March 2025

({,093.87) ({,093.87)

in lakhs

Balance as at April 01,2023
(3,995.40) (3,995.{0)

lirtal comprehcnsivc income of thc vear
( l (n).01) ( l (x).0 1)

Balance at 3l Nlarch 202.1
(1,095.{l) (-1,095.41)

*Refer note No. 8
**Retained Earnings

Rcprescnts surplus/dcficir in srarement oIprofit and krss

'l'he irbovc statemcnt oichanges in ecluin' [<rrms an inregral part ()f thcsc financial slatcmcnt

Iltrsecl rrn our rep()rt oi even dtrtc attachcd.

['or and on behalIo[

ARG & Co. LLP
(.harrcrcd .\ccountants

I;ll\ : I I I ()6i( )\/\5o(11l.l6

Kunal

|):trtncr

\le mbrrsh \o.: 52 I 169

Place: Gurugram

Date: 23.04.25

I'or :rnd on bchalI oI thc l]orrrd oi drre ctors oi
Kolkata International Convention Centre Limited

Satish K Tvagi

I)l\: ()()()()3-1.31

l)irector

o

Pankai Rastogi

I )l\ : t)t{92 l jt t+

I )rrector

h

Partic'tars Balance as tt
Aprll0l,?-024

Changrs in cquity
ehare capial

during the yeer

Balance et
3l March 2025

Particulars Balance ae et
ApflA\2023

Changes in equitv
sharr capital

during the y'ear

Bal,ance et
3l March 2024

Partic.'lars

Eq"itu component
of compound

financial
instruments

Reserves end surplus
Total

Capital Reeerye
Reaiued

Eamingsr'+

Particulars

Eqritv componcnt
of compound

financial
iastnrments

Rcserves and surplus

Total
Cepial Reserve

Reteined
Earningss

'--\7)r'



KOLKATA INTERNATIONAL CONVENTION CENTRE LIMITED
CIN No. U70 L01DL2005PLC1 37 339

Regd. Office: l-E Jhandewalan Extension, Naaz Cinema Complex, New Delhi -110055
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the yer ended 3L MarchZ1Zs

1. Cotpotateinformation

Kolkata Intemational Conwention Cente Limited ('the Companr) was incorporated onJune 8,2005. The objective
of the compan't- is primarilv in the business of real estate der.elopment. The registered ofFrce is situated at l-E
Jhandewalan Exrcnsion, Naaz Cinema Complex, New Delhi -1 10055

The standalone Frnancial statements for the lear ended 31 Nlarch 2025 rvere authorised and approred bv the Board
of Directors on for issue on 23 -\pril 2025.

2. Matedal accounting policies

2.1 Basis of ptepamtion

The standalone Frnancial statements ('financial statements) of the Company have been prepared in accordance with
the Indian Accounting Standatds ftereinafter referted to as the'Ind AS) as notifred by N{inistq' ofCorporate Affarrs
('NICA) under Section 133 of the Companies -\ct, 2013 (-\ct) read with the Companies gnAan .\ccounting
Standards) Rules,2015, as amended from time to time and presentation requirements ofDivision II of Schedule IIi
to the Companies Act,2013 (nd -\S comp)iant Schedule III), as appl-icable to the standalone Frnancial statements.

The standalone financial statements have been preprared on a going concem basis in accordance with accounting
pdnciples generallv accepted in India. Further, the standalone financial statements have been prepared on historicJ
cost basis excqrt for certain Frnancial assets, financial liabilities, derivative financial insmrments and share based
Payments w'hich are measuted-a-t.fair values as explained in relevant accounting policies. The changes in accoundng
policies are explained in note 2.2(o).

The standalone financial statements are presented in Rupees and all values ate rounded to the nearest lakh, excqrt
when othenvise indicated.

2.2 Summary of matetial accounting policies

a) Current and non-cunent classilication

The Companv presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-curent classification. -\-n
asset is treated as current rvhen it is:

months after the reporting period.

lll other assets are classified as non-current.

A liabilin'is current rvhen:

rePorting period. !t' . .,.. ,' ' -

The Compan)-classihes all other liabiliries as non-currenr.

Deferred tas assets and habilities are classified as non-clrrent assets and liabilities

f,ft,nl-n*$.i'f*d/



KOLKATA INTERNATIONAL CONVENTION CENTRE LIMITED
CIN No. U70 101DL2005 PLC13 7 339

Regd. Office: l-E Jhandewalan Extension, Naaz Cinema Complex, New Delhi -110055
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the yeat ended 3L MarchZ0ZS

The operating crcle is the time benveen the acquisition ofassets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents.

b) Property, plant and equipment

kn3nitiot dnd i tial nediareme
Propert]', Plant and equipment at their initial recognition are stated at their cost of acquisition. on transition to Ind
AS, the Companr had elected to measule all-of its propern, plant and equipment at the previous G.L\p carning
value (deemed cost). The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost, ifcapitdrzation critetia are met and direcr.ly
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its vorking condition forlhe intended use. An1 trade discount and rebates
are deducted in arriring at the purchase price. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carning amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, onlr when it is probable that future economic benerrts asiociated with
the item will florv to the Companr. \\hen significant pattr of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
inten'als, the Companl' depreciates them separate\ based on their specific useful li"es. Likes,ise, whel a major
inspection is petformed, its cost.is recognised in the cam'ing amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement
if the recognition criteria are satisfied. Al[ othet repair and maintenance costs 

^r. 
.".ogrrir.i in statemeni of profit

and loss as incurred. The Companv identiFres and determines cost of each .o-poo.rrt/ purt of the asset sepatatelr,,
if the component/ part have a cost rvhich is significant to the rotal cosr ofthe asset and has useful life that is materiallv
different from rhat of the remaining asset.

Sabteqnnt meaturcment Qleprer.iatiot a uuJul liwt)
Propertr', plant and equipment are subsequentll measured at cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if anr-. Depreciation on propertl', plant and equipment is pror.'ided on a straight-)ine basis over
the estimated usefrrl lives ofthe assets as follorvs:

Asset category* Estimated useful
life

(in years)

Estimated useful life as per
Schedule II to the Companies

Act, 20tl
(in years)

Buildings
Plant and machinen-
Computers and data processing unirs

- Sen ers and networks
- Desktops, laptops and other devices

Furniture and fixtures
Office equipmenr
Vehicles

20-60
10-15

60

15

6
aJ

5-10
5

8-10

6

J

10

5

8-10

The Companl', based on technical assessment made bl technical expert and management estimate, depreciates
cetain items of building, fumiture and fixrures and plant and equipment over esdi-rated useful lives rvhich are
different. from the u-seful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies .\ct, 2013. The management believes that
these estimated useful lir-es are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period orer rvhrch'the assets are Likelr.
to be used,

*In case of assets pertaining to Golf and Club opentions, the Companl based on technical etaluation and
management estimate considers the useful life of the assets as belori.,

Asset categon' Useful life
(in years)

Buildings
Plant and machinen'
Fr,rrnirure and flxtures ,(noorrort

20

10

5

\*\
11



c)

KOLKATA I NT E RNAT I ONAL C OI\TVENT I ON C ENT RE LIMIT ED
CIN No. U70 101DL2005 pLCLt 7 339

Regd. Office: l-E Jhandewalan Extension, Naaz Cinema Complex, New Delhi -110055
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 3L Marc h 20Zs

The residual values, useful [ves and method of depreciation are retierved at the end of each financial r.ear and
adjusted prospectiveh, if appropriare

De-ncugaition

An item ofptopern, plant and equiPment and an1'signi|rcant part initialh. recognised is de-recognised upon disposal
or when no future economic bene,Frts are expected ftom itr ,.. o, dirporal. An1:qain or loss arisiig on de-re.ogrritio,
of the asset (calculated as the difference betu-een the net disposal proceeds anithe carning amJunt of the alset) is
included in the statement ofprofit and loss s.-hen the asset is de-reiognised.

Capital work-in-ptogress and intangibte assets under development

Capital work-in-progress and intangible assets under development represents expenditure incurred in respect of
capital proiects /intangible assets undet development and are carried at cost less accumulated impairment loss, if
any' Cost includes land, related acquisition expenses, development/ constuction costs, borrorving costs and other
direct expenditure.

Revenue ftom contlact ot services with customet and other sEeams of revenue

Rel'enue from contracts w'ith customers is recognised rvhen contol of the goods or services are transferred to the
customet at an amount that reflects the considemtion to which the Compani. expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or sen'ices. The Companv has generally concluded that it is the pdncipal in its revenue arrangemen6
because it tlpicalh' conttols the goods and sen'ices before transferring them to rhe customers.

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions telating to reyenue from contracts
rvith customers are pror-ided in note 2.2@b).

i. Revenue from Contracts with Customers:

Revenue is measured at the fair value of tle considemtion receired/receir.able, taking into account contractualh.
deFrned terms ofpalment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the got.---.rr, 

".rd 
i, 

"., "i..Uri.;and discounts. The CompanY assesses its revenue.arrangements against specific criieria to determine ifit is acting as
principal or agent. The Companv has concluded that it ii acting ai a principal in all ofits revenue affangemenm.

Revenue is recognised in the Statement ofProfrt and Loss to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits
w-ill flo1r- to the Companr. and rhe rerenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliablr,.

The Companl'has applied five step model as per Ind AS 115 'Revenue from contracts uith customers, to lecognise
revenue in the smndalone financial statements. The Companl satisFres a performance obligation and recoglises
revenue over time, ifone ofthe follorving criteria is met:

a) The customer simultaneoush' teceives and consumes the benefits pror-ided br the Companr"s performance as the
Companr performs; or
b).The Companr''s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced; or
c) The CompanYt performance does not create an asset sith an altemative use to the Companr and the entifi- has
an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to datb.

For performance obligations rl'here anr of the above conditions are not met, rer-enue is recognised at the point in
time at rvhich the performance obligation is sadsfied.

Rerenue is recognised either at point of time or orer a period of time based on r.arious conditions as included in the
contracts with customers.

Point of Time: i ,, it, . ' . -

d)



KOLKATA INTERNATIONAL CONVENTION CENTRE LIMITED
CIN No. UZO t}tDLZ}0spLCtt 7 i39

Regd. Office: l-E Jhandewalan Extension, Naaz Cinema Complex, New Delhi -110055
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 Marc h Z1Zs

kwrue Jwn real-utate prujuts

Rel'enue is tecognised at the Point in Time w.r.t. sale of real estate units, including land, plom, apalments,
commercial units, detelopment rights including de'elopment agreements as and when ,hi .onoil pr..., on to the
customef.

Inoene al nst oJ obtainitgm rar.t

The incremental cost orobtaining a contract with a customer is recognised as an asset if compan). expects to recover
those costs subiect to other conditions of the standard are met. Thise costs are charged to ,tatem*t of p.ofit -dloss in accordance with the transfer of the proper$ to the customer.

Over a pedod of time:

Rer.enue is recognised over period of time for following stream of revenues:

Reuerue Jion Co-&aelopne projettJ

Co-deveJopment projects where the Companl is acting as contractor, rer.enue is recognised in accordance with the
tems of the co-developer agteements. Under such contracts, assets created does no, L"" ,r, altemative use for the
Companvand the Companl'has an enforceable right to palment. The estimated proiect cost includes construction
cost, deyelopment and construction matedal, intemal development cost, extemal'der-elopment charges, borowing
cost and overheads of such project.

The estimates of the saleable area and costs are tel'iewed periodicallv and effect of anr changes in such estimates is
recognized in the period such changes are determined. Hower.er, when the total project cost"is estimated to exceed
total revenues from the project, the loss is recognized immediatelr..

C o n r rnni o n a t d -f t -o t pmje LtJ

Construction and fit-out pro,ects where the Companv is acting as contractor, revenue is recognised in accordance
with the terms of the construction agfeements. Unier such conLcts, assets cteated does not have an altemative use
and the Companl has an enforceabl! right to pavment. The estimated proiect cost includes construction cost,
development and constnrction material and overheads of such project,

The.Companv uses cost based input method for measuring progtess for performance obligation satisfied over time.
Under this method, the Companv recognises rer.enue in pi"po.tioo to th. uctual project cJst incurred as against the
total. estimated proiect cost. The management rerieu,s and rer"ises its -.rrrr. of progress periodicalll and are
considered as change in estimates and according\', the effect ofsuch changes in estim"ie, ii,..oio.ised prospecti'el'
in the period in rv'hich such changes ate detetmined. Hovever, *he., thl total ptoject cost is Istimated to exceed
total tevenues from the proiect, the loss is recognized immediatelr..

As the outcome ofthe contracts cannot be measured relhblr during the earlr- stages of the project, contract revenue
is recognised onlv to rhe extent of cosrs incurred in the st"t.-ent o'f profit and lJss.

lbuerue Jitttt go/J ;oane operationt

Income from 
_go1f 

cour-se operadons, capitation, sponsorship etc. is Frxed and recognised as per the management
agreement with the parties, as and *hen Companl satisFres peiformance obligation br-ieli"ering the promiseJgoods
or sen-ices as per cont(actual agreed terms.

Rentalund )lai eautuu ittjone



KOLKATA INTERNATIONAI CO}WENTION CENTRE LIMITED
CIN No. U70101DL2005PLC1}7 339

Regd. office: l-E Jhandewalan Extension, N 
^az 

cine.. complex, New Delhi -110055
Notes to Standarone Financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

ReTenue in tespect ofrental and maintenance seri'ices is tecognised on an accrual basis, in accordance with the termsof the respective contract as and'Fhen the Companl satisfiei performance obligations bv delir.ering the senices asper contfactual agreed terms.

Olher Operating Iruvne
lncome from forfeirure of ptoperties and intetest from banks and customers undet agreements to sell is accountedfor on an accrual basis except in cases n'here ultimate colection is considered doubtfu"r.

i. Volume tebates and early payment rebates

The C-ompany provides move in rebates/ eadr.par.ment rebates/ dotvn par.ment rebates to the customers. Rebatesare offset. agailst 
-amounts 

parable br the customer and revenue to'be recognised. ro.rai-ri. the variable
consideration for the expected future rebates, the Companr estimates the expecteirzlu. ofr.b"t , ih"t 

"re 
likelr. to

be incurted in future and recognises the te'enue net ofiebates and recognises the refund li"bilin-f". .;;;;;';;;;
rebates.

u Contract balances

Contrar:t asrctt

'\ conuact asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If tle
Companr petforms b,r' transfetring goods ot sen-ices to a customer before the customer pa).s consideration or before
parment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the eamed consideration that is conditional.

Tmde rc,.viuables

Aleceivable represents the Companr''s right to an amount ofconsidelation that is unconditional (i.e. onlr. the passage
of time is tequired before parment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in
section 2.2(u) Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Contract liabilitiet

A conuact liabilitr is the obligation to transfer goods or serrices to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pats consideration before
the Companv ttansfers goods or sen-ices to the customer, a contract liabilin is recognised rvtren the pavment is made
or the pavment is due (rvhicheret is eariier). Contract liabilities are recognised-as rer.enue when the Company
performs under the contract

e) Cost ofrevenue

Con of m.t/ €r-tule projel.tr

cost of constructed properties other- than SEZ projects. includes 
_cost 

of tand (including cost of developmentrights/land under agreements to purchase), .rti-"t.i irtemal der-elopm.r,, .o.,., .*,.-oi d....lop-ent charges,borrowing costs, overheads, con-struction costs and de'elopment/con.*.rio.r -"ua.i.r.ir.n i, .t rrg"a ,o ,t .statement ofProfit and loss based on lhe re'enue recognized as erplained in accounting policr- for revenue from tealestate proiects abo'e' in consonance vith the concepiof mat.hi'g ..,.r. 
"nd 

,..-.rrr.."irnri 
^Jlurorr.rrt 

i. -ud..o.,complerion of the specific project.

Cot o.[ SL:Z prujeit.r

('()st ()l'.collstructcd properties includes estimared irrternal der elt.rpmenr c()sts. estcrnal developm.\ .ho.g...r'rlerheads' borrowing cost' construction c<.rsts and derelopmenr/construcdon matedals,.rhi.h ir'.hrlga[t;tXh;

, u,.t ",

;'{icHAiiTIliiD\
i lrcco'-ltiTAi'rTS i
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statement of prcFrt and loss based on the reven"e recognized as explained in accounting policl for revenue from rcal
estate SEZ projects above, in consonance rvith the coniept of matihing costs and rer.eIue. Final adjustmenr is made
on completion of the specific project.

Cost of latd ud plott

Cost ofland and plots includes land (including development rights), acquisition cost, estimated internal der.elopment
costs and extemal development chatges, rvhich is chatged to the statement ofprofit and loss based on the percentage
of land/ploned area in respect of which.revenue is recognised as explained in accounting policl- for re'enue froin
'Sale of land and plots', in consonance with the concept of m"t.hiog .ost 

"rrd 
revenue. Filai adjustrnent is made on

completion of the specific projecr.

Cost oJ dn'ebpnen ightt

Cost_of develoPment rights includes p-topottionate development rights cost, borowing costs and other related cost,
vhich is charged to statement ofpro6t and loss as explained in aciounting poliq [or"ro'.rr., in consonance with
the concept of matching cost and rerenue.

D Borrowing costs

Borrorving costs directlt 
",n 

Ou,ub,e to the acquisition and/or construction/production of an asset that necessarih.
takes a substantial period of time to get ready fot its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the .or, of,fr.
asset. All othet borowing costs are charged to the statement of profit and loss Jirrc,rrr.d. Btrrowing costs consist
ofinterest and other costs that the Companv incurs in connection with the borowing of funds. Borro:wing cost also
includes exchange differences to the extent rcgarded as an adjustment to the botrovi"ng costs.

g) Taxes

Curent income tar

Tax expense recogmzed in statement ofprofit and loss comprises the sum ofdeferred tax and cuffent tax except the
ones recognized in other comprehensire income or directll- in equin..

Current income tali assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered ftom or paid to the
taxation authodties. Current tar is detetmined as the ta-x palable in reipect of taxable income for the r.eat and is
computed in accordance with relevant tax tegulations. Current income tax relating to items recognised outside
statement ofproFrt and loss is recognized outside statement of profit and loss (either ii other comprehensir.e income
or in equrn). Curent tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlving ttansaction eitherl OCI or directl.
in equin'. Nlanagement pedodicallv evaluates positions taken in the ,u* r.au.i, with respect to ,it 

"tior* 
i11.rrhi.i1

applicable tax regulations ate subiect to interpretation and establishes protisions r.,here appropriate.

In the situations ltitere one or more units/undertaking in the Companl are entitled to a tas holidar under the
Income-tas Act, 1961' no deferted tax (asset ot liab in) is recognizet in respect of temporan. aff"r..r.., .ut.ri.tr5fs9 dulnq the tas holidav period, to the extent the concemed entih's gross t,rt"l in.o-e is subiect ro the
deduction during the tar holidal period. Deferred tar in tespect of temporan' d]fferences rvhich reverse after the tax
holidar- period is recognized in the leat-in l'hich the tempomn' differences originate. Hou,erer, the Compa111- resrricrs
recognition of deferred tax assets to the extent it is probable that sufhcient"future taxable income will be ararlable
against \-hich such deferred tax assets can be realized. For recognition of deferred taxes, the temporan- differences
rvhich originate Frst are considered to rererse first,

Dcferred ras

Def-erred tar is provided using the liabilin-method on temporan differences bcn'een rlre Ja.i [4se,s o[assets and
liabilities and their carni.g amounts tbr financiar r.p,rrtirrg i,r.p,r..... ar trre teporting da. t ' . iit-t..; ,.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporarr. differences, except:

' In respect of taxable temporan' differences associated rvith investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests
in ioint vennrres, \r'hen the timing.o f the reversal of the temporan'differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporan' differences rr,.ill not rererse ifl the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax as_sets are recognised For all deductible temporan' differences, the carn. fonvard of unused tax credits
and anv unused tax losses. D.f:....d lT assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable proFrt will
be aTailable against which the deductible tempotan' diiferences and the cafi. forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised.

The cam"ing amount of deferred tax assets is terieved at each repotting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longet probable that sufficient taxable proFrt urill be available t" 

"tlo- "U 
or par of the defetred tax asset to be

ut1lise6. grr".ao*ised deferred ta:r assets are fe-assessed at each reporting date and are rccognised to the extent that
it has become probable that furure taxable prcFrts s,'ill allorv the deiered-tax asset to be recolvered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to appll. in the r.ear when the asset
is realised or the liabilitf is settled, based on tas rates (and tax lavs) that have been enacied or substantir-elr- enacted
at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items tecognised outside statement of ptoht and loss is recognised outside statement of
prorrt and loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equiq). Deferred tax items ire recogmsed in corelation
to the underh.ing transaction either in OCI or directlr, in equin.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset ifa legallr enfotceable right exists to set offcurrent ta-\ assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferted taxes relate to the same taxable entin and the same taxation authoritl..

Sales tax / value added taxes/ GST paid on acquisition of essets or on incu.ing expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales tax ,/ value added taxes,/Goods and sen ices ta_x paid,
except:
> \\hen the tax incuned on a purchase ofassets or sen'ices is not recoverable from the taxation authorin, in which

case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the e*pense irem, as
applicable

> \\hen receirzbles and par.ables are stated with the amount of tax included
The net amount of tax recoverable from, or palable to, the taxation authoritr is included as part of receivables or
palables in the balance sheet.

h) Impaitment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date. the Companv assesses rvhether there is anl indication based on internal/external factors, that
,tt 

"sr.t 
In"r' be impaired. If anr'-such indication exists, the Comianl estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.

-\n asset's recorerable amount is the higher of an asset's or ca.sh-generating unit's (CGU) fair talue less costs of
disposal and its value in use, Recoverable amount is determined for an individual ar..t, ,rnle.. the asset does not
generate cash inflorvs that are largelt independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. \\hen the carn.ing
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its tecoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is rwitten dorrn to
its recoverable amount and the imPairment loss, including impairment on inventories, is recognised in the statement
of profit and loss.
In assessingvalue in use, the estimated furure cash florvs are discounted to their presenr ralue using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of moner- 

"rrd 
,h. ,r.k. ,p..ih. io the asset, In

detennining fair value less costs of disposal, recent marker transactions are tak.r, into 
^..ount. 

I f ng sucli transactions
can llc.identilied. an appropriare lalultion model is used. 

-l 
hest, calculations ars corroboratecl br.r-aliration multiples.

quorcd share prices for publich' tracled companies or other available tair r.alue indicator,. ' ' )'lir, ,i, ,j j 
' 

,,\
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The Companl bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculation. These budgets and
forecast.calculations generalh' corre-r a period of Frve rears, For loiger periods, a long term gtowth rate is calculated
and applied to proiect furure cash flo*s after the fifth r.ear.

If, at the reporting date there is an indication that a previouslr assessed impairmenr loss no longer exists, the
recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflectid at the recoverable amount. Impairment loslses previousll-
recognized are accordingly rcrersed in the statement ofprofit and loss.

i) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equiralents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and in hand and short term deposirs vith an
original maturiq' of three months or [ess, vhich ate subject to an insigniFrcant risk of changes in value.

Fot the purpose of the statement of cash florvs, cash and cash equirzlents consist of unrestricted cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the
Companrrs cash management.

i) Pmvisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Prot'isions are recognized onlt rvhen there is a present obligation (legal or construct.ive), as a tesult of past events,
and it is probable that an outflow of resource-s emboddng economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and when a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made at rhe reponing daie. Provisions are discounted
to theit present values, rvhere the time value of money is material, using a current-pte-ta: mte that reflects, rvhen
appropriate, the risks specific to the liabilin. \\hen discounting is usecl] the increase in the proyision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a Elance cost.

\\tren the Companv expects some ot all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset, but onlv rvhen the reimbursement is virtualh' certain. The expense relating to a pror.ision iipresented
in the sratemenr of profit and loss net of anl reimbursement.

Onetous contacts

If the Companv has a conftact that is onerous, the present obligation under the conract is recognised and measured
as a provision. Horvever, before a sepatate pror-ision for an onerous contract is established, the Lompanr- recognises
anl impairment loss that has occurred on assets dedicated to thar contract.

-\n onetous contract is a contract under u'hich the unavoidable costs (i.e., the costs that the Compan\- cannot avoid
because it has the conuact) of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic beneirts expected to
be received undet it. The unar-oidable costs under a contract reflect the least net cost of exiting from the contract,
rvhich is the lorver of the cost of fulfilling it and anl compensation or penalties atising from faiiure to fulFrl it

These estimates are revierved at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimatcs.

Contingent liabilin' is disclosed for:

o Possible obligations s'hich s'ill be confirmed onh'bl future evinrs not r.holh.u,.ithin the control ofthe Companr.
or

o Present obligations arising from?ast events rtere it is not probable that an outflorv ofresources will be required
to setde the obJ.igation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed except u'hen realisition of income is r-irtuall- certain, related
asset is discloscd.

k) Leases

T'he Compan)- assesses at contract inception s,hethe, ,irp.\*rgoct is,-or contains, a lease. That is. if the contract
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conYevs the right to control the.use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The_Companl applies a single tecognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases
and leases of lou-value assets. The Companr- recognises tease liabiliues to make lease parrnents and right-of-use
assets representing the right to use the underlring assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Companl' recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the undelying
asset is arzilable fot use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less anv accumulated depreciation and rmpairrn'ent
losses-and adiusted for ant temeasurement oflease liabilities. The cost oiright-of-use assets includes the amount of
lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease pa]'ments made at or before the cotrunencement
date less ant lease incentives rcceived. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term
as follorvs:

Asset categor!' Lease term
Land
Buildings
Assets taken on lease for golf operations

28-36 \'ears
3-16 vears

6 vears

If ownetship of the leased asset tansfers to the Companl at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the esdmated usefi.rl life of the asset.
The right-of-use assets are also subiect to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in note 2.2(p) on impairment
of non-financial assets.

Lease liabilities
At the commencement date of the lease, the Companr recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of
lease pavments to be made over the lease term. The lease par-rnents include Frxed par.ments (including in-substance
fixed par-rnents) less any lease incentives receivable, rariable lease parments that depend on an index'or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual ralue guarantees. The lease pavments also include the exercise price of
a purchase option reasonablr certain to be eriercised bl the Companr and patrnents ofpenalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term teflects the Companl exercising the option to terminate. Yariable lease par.ments that do not
depend on an index or a tate are recogmsed as expenses in the period in which the event or condition that triggers
the pament occufs.

In calculating the present value of lease patments, the Companv uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
colrurlencement date because the interest tate impl.icit in the lease is not readilv determinable. -\fter the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for
the lease palments made. In addition, the catn'ing amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if therc is a modification,
a change in the lense term, a change in the lease palments (e.g., changes to fi:ture par.menrs resulting from a change
in an index or rate used to determine such lease palments) or a change in the assesiment of 

"r, 
optiarn to p,rchaie

the underldng asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Compant applies the short-term lease recognition exemption ro its shor-term leases (i.e. those leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It alscr
applies the lease of lon'value assets recognition exemption to leases of assets that are considered to be lorv value.
I"ease palments on short-term leases and leases ot lot'r'alue a.ssets are recognised as e\pense on a straight-Line basis
over the lease lerm.

fr
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Company as a lessor

Leases in s"hich the Companl does not transfet substantialll all the risks and rervards of ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. ilental income from operating iease is recognised on a stmight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging rn op.roltirrg lease are added to the
carn'ing amount ofthe leased asset and tecognised orer the lease term on the ,"-e brri, 

", 
.it"l income. Contingent

rents are recognised as revenue in the period in rvhich ther are eamed. Fit-out rental income is recognised irithe
statement of profit and loss on accrual basis.

Leases are classi[red as Frnance leases rvhen substantiallv all of the risks and rewatds of ownership tansfer from the
Company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under frnance leases are recotded as receivable.s at the Companv,s
net investment in the leases. Finance Iease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant
periodic rate of retum on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

Financial instruments

,\ financial instrument is an)'conftact that gives rise to a hnancial asset ofone entiq.and a Frnancial liabilitr.or equi6
instrument of another entitr-.

1) Financial Assets

Initial ncognition and me.tJ refiett

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequentlv measured at amortised cost, fait value through
other comprehensive income (OCI), and fait value though profit or loss.

The classification of Frnancial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contracnral cash flow
characteristics and the Companv's business model for managing them. \\'ith the exception of tade receivables that
do not contain a significant financing component or for rvhich the Companv has appliid the practical expedient, the
Compant' initiallv measutes a Ernancial asset at its fair rzlue plus, in the case of a Frnancial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, net of transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
comPonent or for rvhich the Companr has applied the practical expedient ate measured at thi transaction prici
determined under Ind ,{.S 115 'Revenue from contracts with customers'. Refer to the accounting policies in seition
2.2 (i) 'Revenue from contract \,.ith customers.

In otder for a Frnancial asset to be classihed and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to
give rise to cash flows that are'solelv pavments ofptincipal and interest (SPPI)'on the pnncipal a;ount outsranding.
This assessment is referred to as the SPPI rest and is performed at an instrument level.

The Companr''s business model for managing Frnancial assets refers to horv it manages its Frnancial assets il order to
generate cash floss. The business model determines whether cash florvs will result irom collecting contractual cash
flovs, selling the financial assers, or both.

S u b*q ae n I m ed.t ttreme fi t

i. Financial assets cafried at amortised cost -a hnancial asset is measured at amortised cosr iF both the
follorving conditions are mer:

' The asset is held r"rthin a business model whose objecuve is to hold assets flor collecting conuactual cash
florvs; and

' Contracrual terms of the asset give rise on speciFled dates to cash flos,s that are sole6' pa\-ments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on rhe principal amoLrnr oursranding.

^\fter initial rleasLlrement. sllch finar-rcial assets are subsequenth'measured at alrrortisedrcost Llsing the effectir-e
interesr rate (EIR) metl-rod. ,' .".,;,1 ,,1,;:. I



ll. Investments in equity insttuments of subsidiaries, ioint ventures and associates - Inr-esrments in equin,
instruments of subsidiaries, joint ventufes and associates are accounted for at cost in accordance q,.rth Ind .\S
27'Separate Financial Statements'.

lll. Investments in other equity instruments - Investments in equin- instruments rvhich are heid for trading
are classified as at tair value through profit or loss (F\TPL). For all orher equin instruments, the Companr-
makes an irrevocable choice upon iniual recognition, on an instrument-bv-instrument basis, to classifrl the
same either as at fair value through other comprehensive income (tr\'OCD or fair value through profit or loss
(F\rTPL). -\mounts presented in other comprehensive income are not subsequentlv transferred to ,tut.-..rt
of profit and loss. Ho',vever, the Compan)- transfers the cumulative gain or loss rvrthin equin'. Dir.idend on
such investments are recognised in statement o[ profit and loss unless the d.ir.idend cleari" ..p....nts a
recoven' o[ part of the cost of the inr-estment.

iv. Investments in mutual funds - Investments in mutual funds are measured at fair value through profit ot
loss (F\TPL).

Fair value changes on instruments measured at FYTPL is tecognised in the Statement of ProFrt and Loss unless the
Companv has elected to measure such instrument at FYOCI. Fair value changes on instruments measured at FYOCI
are recognised in OCI. -\mounts recognised in OCI are not subsequenth reclassified to the Statement ofProfit and
Loss.

D e -n c,ogni tio n of f n a n cial att e ts

A.financial asset (or, v'here applicable, a patt of a Frnancial asset or parr of a group of similar financial assets) is
ptimarilr derecognised (i.e. removed from the Companv's standalone balance sheet) rvhen:

. The rights to receiye cash flows from the asset have expired, or
' The Companr has tansferred its dghts to receive cash florvs from the asset or has assumed an ob)igation

to pal the receir.ed cash florvs in full rvithout material delay to a third parn'under a'pass-through'
arangement; and either (a) the Companr has transferred substantiallr all the risks and rewzrds of the asset,
or (b) the Companl has neither tmnsferred nor retained substantialh' all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has ransferred control of the asset.

Continuing involvement that takes the form ofa guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carn'ing amount of the asset and the maximum amount ofcoosideration that the Companl could be required
to repa\'.

Inluimet off runcial awtt
In accordance with Ind -\S 109 'Financial Instruments', the Companv applies expected credit loss (ECL) model fot
measurement and recognition of impairment loss for financial assets.

ECL is the weighted-average of difference benveen all contractual cash florvs that are due to the Companr- in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Companv expects to receive, discounted at the triginal
e_ffective intetest rate, with the respectire risks of default occuffing as the u-eights. \\hen estimating the cash florvs,
the Companv is required to considet -
. -\ll contractual terms of the tlnancial assets (including prepar-ment and extension) over the erpected life of the

assets.

r Cash florvs from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

(i) Tradt rer.,ei t.ublet

In respect of trade receivables, the Companr. applies rhe .simplifrgd xpproach of Ind _\S 109 ,Financial Instruments,.
s-hicl, requires measurement of loss allorvance ut 

"rr 
iglorinq ..'iii.,ai to lifetime espected credit losses. Iifetime

espected credit losses are the expected ctedrr losses ;@iesult t'rom dl possible defauit etents or.er the expected life
ola financial instrumenr. i.(iCtt,f ii, i;, . ,

(ii) Other Tinunial d.t.tet.r
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In respect ofits other financial assets, the Companl assesses if the credit risk on those hnancial assets ha,s increased
signiEcantll' since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not incteased signiFrcanth since initial recognition, the
Companl' measures the loss allorvance at an amount e<1ual to 12-month expected credit losses, else at an amount
equal to the lifetime expected credit losses.

\\hen making this assessment, the Companl uses the change in the risk of a default occuring over the expected life
of the Frnancial asset. To make that assessment, the Companl compares the risk ofa default ociurring on the tlnancial
asset as at the balance sheet date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable informatioa, that is available \,'ithout undue cost or effor,
that is indicative of signiFrcant increases in credit risk since initial recognition. The Companr- assumes that the cred.it
risk on a financial asset has not increased sigmficandr since initial recognition if the Enancial asset is determined to
have lorv credit risk at the balance sheet date.

2) Non-detivative financial liabilities

I nitial rerugrition and neararemenI

Financial liabilities are classiFred, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fait value through pro[rt or loss, loans
and borrowings and patables, net of ditectll. attributable rtansaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilities include rade and other payables, secudq' deposits, loans and borrowings and
other F:nancial liabilities including bank overdrafts and Frnancial guarantee contracts.

Subvquenl mearunme

Subsequent to initial recognition, the measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described
below:

Loaw and borrowingt

-\fter initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequenth measured at amonised cost using
the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in statement ofprofit and loss rvhen the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the EIR amortisation ptocess. Amortised cost is calculated br- taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that ate an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as
f,mance costs in the statement ofproht and loss.

b- i n a n i a I ga a rd lt lee L'o n lra i.r

Financial guarantee contracts are those contracts that require a palment to be made to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because the specified parn fails to make a par"rnent rl'hen due in accordance with the terms ofa debt
instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognized as a financial liabi[n at the time the guarantee is issued at
fair value, adiusted for transacdon costs that are directlr attributable to the issuance of the grru.ur,t... Subsequenth.,
rhe tiabilin is measured at the higher of the amount of sspecred loss allorrance derermined as per impairment
requirements of Ind -\S 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortization.

D e-rcnjnition of-fi nut,.id lidbilitie.t
\ financial liabilin' is de-recognised rvhen the obligation under rhe liabilin- is discharged or cancelled or expires
\\hen an existing financial liabiLin-is replaced br-another From the same lender on sllbstantiallv di[t-erent terms, or
the terms oi an esisting liabilin'are subsrannalh- modified, such an exchange or modification is rreated as the de-
recognition o[ rhe original liabilin' and rhe recogni
amounts is recosnised in the sratement of profit an

3) Reclassification of financial instruments

tion o[ a new liabilin-. The di[fere the res
d loss

*
CHARI T-fi

ACCOUN-iFi

PectlYe carr\'lng
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The Companl determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recogoition. After initial
recognition, no reclassification is made for Frnancial assets which are equitr instruments and financial liabilities. For
financial assets rvhich are debt insruments, a reclassiFrcation is made onh'if rhete is a change in the business model
for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequentl The Companr''s senior
management determines change in the business model as a result of extemal or intemal changes u-hich are significant
to the Companv's operations. Such changes are evident to extemal parties. A change in the business modil occurs
rvhen the Companl either begins ot ceases to perform an activi* that is significant to its operations. If the Companv
reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification ptospectivelv ftom the reclassiFrcation date rvhich is tne nrst
day ofthe immediatelv next reporting period follow'ing the change in business model. The Compan\. does not restare
any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

4) Offsetting of financiel insuuments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and tle net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currentlt' enforceable legal right to ofifset the tecognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities sirnultaneously.

m) Fait value measutement
The Companv measutes Frnancial instruments such as derivative instruments etc at fair value at each balance sheet
date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordedy transaction
betrveen market patticipants at the measurement date. The fait value of an asset or a liabilin is measured using the
assumptions that matket Participants would use vhen pricing the asset or iiab ig, assuming ihat market particifants
act in their economic best interest. A fait value measurement of a non-Frnancial asset takes into account a market
panicipant's abilin to generate economic benehts bv using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Compant uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data ate
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant obsen able inputs and minimising the use of
unobsen'able inputs.

,\ll assets and liabilities for v'hich fair talue is measured or disclosed in the Frnancial statements are categorised within
the fait value hierarchv, described as follors, based on the lorvest level input that is signi[rcant to the fair value
measurement as a rvhole:

. Level I - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets ot liabilities

. Level 2 - Yaluation techniques fot rvhich the lorvest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directlt or indkectlv obsen'able

. Level 3 - \'aluation techniques for which the lorvest level input that is signi[rcant to the fair value
measurement is unobserrable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the standalone financial statements on a recurring basis, the Companv
determines 'ivhether transfers have occurred benveen levels in the hierarchl bl re-assessing categorisation @asei on
the lorvest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a \r.hole) at the end ofeach reporting period.

External raluers are invoh'ed for valuatioo ofsignihcant assets, such as properties and unquoted financial assets, and
signi[rcant liabilities, such as contingent consideradon. Inr-olvement of ertemal raluers is decided upon annuallr br.
the management. \'aluets are selected based on market knorvledge, reputation, independenci and 5-heihei
professional standards are maintained.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, rhe Companl has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of
the natute, characteristics and risks of the asset or liabilin and the level o[ the fair value hierarchr- as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policr fot fair value. C)ther fair ralue related disclosures are given in the relerant
notes.

L)isclosures tirr \-aluati()l] t-llcthocls. sisnitlcant cstirnart's ?r1r(l assLullpri()ns (n()te -t ancl 36;.

(]trantitatir-e clisclr)sltres of tarr \-irllrc mc,lsllrcment hicrarchr'(nore 36). ,i.', 
' 

i
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31, March 2025

. Invesrment in unquoted equin- shares (note 68).

o Invesrmenr properties (note -l).

Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (note 36 and 37)

n) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated br dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equih'
shareholders (aftet deducting attributable taxes) bl the w'eighted average number of equin shates outstanding during
the period. The weighted-average numbet of equit\ shares outstanding duting the period is adjusted for events such
as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, sharc split, and reverse share split (consolidation ofshares) that have
changed the number ofequiE shares outstanding without a corresponding change in resources.

Fot the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per share, the net proFrt or loss for the period attributable to equin.
shareholders and the rveighted-average number of shares outstanding during the penod are adjusted for the effects
of all dilutire potential equin shares.

o) Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

New and amended standards

The Companr applied for the fust-time certain standatds and amendments, which are effective for annual pedods
begnning on or after 1 },;pril 2024, but do not have a material impact on the standalone financial statements of the
Company'.

lnd AS 116: Zeases - The NICA notified the Companies (Indian lccounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules,
202.1, rvhich amended Ind AS 116, Leases, with tespect to Lease Liabili6 in a Sale and Leaseback. The amendment
specifies the requirements that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liabilin arising in a sale and leaseback
ttansaction, to ensure the selledessee does not recognise ant' amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of
use it retains. The amendment is effective for annual teporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 202.1 and must
be applied rerospectivelr- to sale and leaseback transactions entered into after the date of iniual application of Ind
AS 116.

These amendments had no material impact on the standalone financial statements of the Companl during the vear.
Ind AS I l7: lnsurance - Tlte \Itnistn' of Corporate Affain (IIC-\) notified the Ind -\S I 17, Insurance Contracts, l-ide
notification dated 12 August 202"1, under the Companies (Indian -\ccounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 202-1,
vhich is effectile from annual reporting periods beginning on or aftet 1 April 202-1.

Ind AS 117 Insurance Contracts is a comprehensire nerv accounting standard for insurance contracrs corering
recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Ind .\S 117 replaces Ind .{S lOJ Insurance Contracts.
Ind -\S 1 17 applies to all npes of insurance contracts, regardless of the n'pe of entities that issue them as N.ell as to
certain guarantees and financial instruments with discretionan' participation features; a ferv scope exceptions sill
apph'. Ind -\S I [7 is based on a general model, supplemented br':

' -\ specihc adaptation tbr contracts with direct participation fearures (the r-ariable fee approach); and
'-\ simplified approach (the premium all.cation approach) mainh-for short-duration .ontr^.tr.

These amendments had no material impact on the standalone Frnancial statements of the Companr during the r.ear.

fhere are no standards that are notified and not vet effecti\-e as on rhe dare
'cHARTE!
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p) Significant management iudgement in applving accounting policies and estimation uncerraint\r
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 3L March2025

The prepatation of the Companr''s standalone financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of rel'enues, expenses, assets and liabilities,-and the
related disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertaintl about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes tlat require a material adjustment to the cam'ing amount of assets o. li"bili,i". affected in
funrre periods.

Signifi cant management iudgements
The following are significant management iudgements in apph'ing the accounting policies of the Companl that have
the most signirrcant effect on the standalone financial statements.

Rerogtrilion o;f deferred lax drretJ - Tlne extent to vhich deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an assessment
of the probabiJin' of the futute taxable income against rvhich the deferred tax asseti can be utilized.

Eualuatioa o-f iadicatort Jbr inpairnent oJ aaet - The evaluation of applicabilin of indicators of impairment of assets
requites assessment of several external and intemal factors which ctuld resuli in deteriomtion ofrccoverable amount
of the assets.

Ckxi/iutiott oJ hatet - The Compant enters into leasing arangements for vadous assets. The classification of the
leasing arrangement as a Ftnance lease or operating lease is based on an assessment of ser.eral factors, including but
not Iimited to, ttansfer of ou.netship of leased asset at end of lease tetm, lessee's option to purchase and estimated
certainn of exercise of such option, proponion of lease term to the asset's ..ono-i. life, proportion of present
value of minimum lease parments to fair value ofleased asset and extent of specialized narure of the leased asset.

Detemnitg the hate lem oJ nntract with nnva/ and temirution optiolt (Cornpanr-as lessee)- The Companv determines
the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with anr periods coveted bv an option to extend the
lease if it is reasonablt certain to be erercised, or anv periods covered bl an option to titmirr"i. the lease, if it is
reasonablr certain not to be exercised. The Companl has several lease contracts that include extension and
terminadon options. The Companv applies judgement in evaluating rvhether it is reasonabfi' certain whether or not
to erercise the option to renere'or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic
incentive for it to exercise either the teneual or termination. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses
the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is *'ithin its control and affecis its abilin
to exercise or not to exetcise the option to renev or to terminate (e.g., coostruction of signiFrcant leasehold
improvements or significant customisation to the leased asset).

Impuirneu ofJindntial a.rralr - .Lt each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates obsen-ed over expected life,
the management assesses the expected credit loss on outstanding financial assets.

Pmvitiorts - lt each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, .il"ng., i, facrs and legal aspects, the
Companl assesses the requirement of pu-isions against the outstanding conungent liabiliues, Ho.ie"er ih" actual
future outcome mal be different from this judgement.

Rerc rue.fiw r,vn /rat!.t ailh LuJtomefi-

The Companr- has applied judgements that significantlt affect the determination of the amount and timing ofrevenue
from contracts with customers.

Significant estimates

The kel assumptions concerning the future and other kel sources of estimation uncertaintl at the reporting date,
that har-e a signiticant risk of causing a material adjustment to rhe cam ing amounrs of 

"ir.t, "nd 
lizbiliries, are

described belorv, The Companl based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available n-hen the standalone
ttnancial statements rvere prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future de-\.elopments, horvever,
mal change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are ber.ond the control of -the.Companr.. Such
clrangcsarereflectedir:theassumptionsrrhenther.occur.

l/*,",^*r,
\lc,cout'.it
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31. Match20ZS

Net realiiab/e u/ae oJ inue oS' -flte determination of net tealisable value of inr.enton involves estimates based on
prevailing market conditions, curent prices and expected date ofcommencement anicompletion of the project, the
estimated funrre selling price, cost to complete projects and selling cost. The Companr.also involves sp,ecialist to
perform valuations of inventories, rvherer-er required.

Uvful liau o;f dEncitble/ anoninbk atteh - Nlantgement rer.iews its estimate of the usefrrl lives of
depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utiliq' of the assets. Uncertainries in
these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that mal change the uti.lin ofassets.

l''alualion oJ inaxtne l pnper! - Investment propern' is stared at cost. Horvever, as per Ind AS 40 'Investment
Properq" there is a tequirement to disclose fafu value as at the balance sheet date. The Companv engaged independent
valuation specialists to determine the fair value ofits investment propert\ as at reporting date. The Jetermination of
the fair valuc of investment propenies requfues the use of estimates such as future cash florvs from the assets (such
as lettings, future rcr'enue streams, capital values of fixtures and fittings, anv em'fuonmental matters and the overall
repair and condition of the propern) and discount rates applicable to those assets. In addition, development risks
(such as construction and letting dsk) are also taken into consideration when determining the fair rzlue of the
properties under construcdon. These estimates are based on local market conditions existing at the balance sheet
date.

Inpairnent oJPruper|'plant equipnefll, Int)eltne t pruPeftier ard CWP - Impdrrment exists rvhen the carning value of an
asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amounq v'hich is the higher ofits fait value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The talue in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are dedved
from the budgets. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as rvell as the
expected future cash-inflows and the grow'th rate used.

DeJined beneft obligalior @BO) -Nlanagement's estimate of the DBO is based on a number of underlying assumptions
such as standard rates of inflation, mortaliq', discount rate and anticipation of future salan increases. Variation in
these assumptions mav significanth' impact the DBO amount and the annual defined beneFrt expenses.

t-air ualae aeasnme ditthrunl - i\Ianagement applies valuation techniques (including but not limited to the use of
illiquiditr discount on investrnents) to determine the fair value of financial instnments (',vhere active matket quotes
are not aYailable). This involves developing estimates and assumptions consistenr with horv market participants
s,-ould price the instrument.

l'ahation oJ'iwutme it ruhidiaiu,lbint wntuns and dtw.iatet- Investments in subsidiades, joinr ventules and
associates ate carried at cost. At each balance sheet date, the management assesses the indicators of impairment of
such investments. This requires assessment of ser.eral external and intemal factor including capitalisation rate, ke\'
assumption used in discounted cash florv models (such as rerenue grorvth, unit price and discount rates) or sales
comparison method which mal affect the carn ing value of investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates.

(tlti.t tpuce ltu.s lnen intenliontt/11 /41 blank1



KOLKATA INTERNATIONAL CONVENTION CENTRE LIIIIITED
C I N No. lJ7 0101D12005 PLC137339

Regd. office: 1-E Jhandeu,alan Extension, Naaz cinema complex, Neu'Delhi -11005s
Notes to the Financial Statements for the r-ear ended 31 March 2025

3 Deferred tax assets (net)
\[rnimr.rrn altcrnarc ra-r credir cntitlcmcr-rt

(i) w'ise movement in deferred tax assets as follous:

\linimum alternate tas crcdit cntitlenlcnt

Total

Nlinimurn alternatc tax credit t:nrirlemeflt 211.12 (211.1 2)

Total 244.12 (244.r2\

4 Non current tax assets (net)
Irrcorne fa\ piud (\ct oI provrsrons)

5 Cash and cash equivalents
Balirncc rrtth schcdulcd banks

- In currcnt itcc()ultts

6 Other bank balances
Balance l'itlr scheduled banks

- Deposits \\'lth maturln' frrr morc than 3 nl()fltl'ls brrt less than l2 months"

'Undcr[ens'ithllDti(-Banka.gatnstarcc()\'en claimrcferredroin\ote.\o.23o[thef;ina.ncral Statemenr

7 Other financial assets

(L'nsccurcd, (.onsrdered good)

Sccurin'deposrt

(lhit qace hat been intentiona/! /eft blankl

13.31 +.10

13.31 4.10

9.01

0.10 0.10

0.10 0.10

<i
I

l
l, ,i

CHAI1 I i: r( I 
':"r

ACC0Ut'l'iA;i'lr:

63.12

63.72

9.01

*
EL

As at
3I March 2025

(t in lakhs)

As at
3ll0.{erch7.W{

Particulars

Particulars 3lMarch2025

Assets Apfi01a20?A MAT Crcdit
Utilised

Other adiustments 3lMerch?.025

Particulars 3lM;arch20?A

Assets April0l, 2023
MAT Credit

Utilised
Other adiustments SlMerch?-02A
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(t in lakhs)

8 EQUITY
EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
(A) Authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital and par value per share

Authorised Capital
50,00,000 (rrevious vear - -i0,00,000) cquin-shares of { l0 eac}r

Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital
50,050 (prcvious vear - 50,050) equin'shares of { l0 each tullr paid up

500 500

501 501
5.01 5.01

500500

(B) Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstand ing at the and at the end of the year

No. of shares No. of shares
50,050 50,050

50,050 50,050

(C) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares :

Rights, preferences and restrictions ( including rest.ictions on distributions of dividends and repayment ofcapital) attached ro the class of
shares

The Ctxnpanl has onlr- rroe class of equin shaes having a pat value of { l0 per share. Each holder of ecluin shares is entiltled to r:nc y()te prr shale. In
rhe cvent of litluidarion of the C<tmpanr, thc holdcrs of cquin shares u'ill be errtitled tr: receir.e remaining assets of the Companr after setting otf all
Iiabilities. The distributioo v'ill be in prportion to the mrmber ofequin sharcs held br the shareholders.

Equity Shares

^\t tlie beginning oi the r-ear

-\dd : Chanlac dlrring the r-car

At the end of the year

Shares held the romoters at the end of the

DLF Hornc Dcvclopers Lirrutcd 0reld rvirh 5 rrorunccs) ' Ecluin 50,000
Dcblakshrm -\bashan Prir.atc Limitcd Equin' 50

Shares held the at the end of the

DLF Hrxne Dcvelopcrs Lirutcd ftcld rvirl-r 5 nominccs) ' Equin' 50,000 99.900 t, \rl
Deblakshmi -\bashan Privatc Lirruted Ecltrin- 50 0.100 , \it

(F) Details of shareholders more than 570 shares

' -\rnericus Rcal Estate Private Limircd, ersnvhilc holding companr has bcen mcrged rrith DLF Hrme Der.elopers Limitcd, pursuant n) rhe c()u4 ord€r
datedlunc 30, 2032.

DLF Honrc Dcrelopers Lirmtcd (held ri.ith -1 norninecs) 50,000 99.90,"r

Particulats

Particulars

As at
31March2025

Name of the shareholder Class of shares
No of shares held

in aggregate

Name of the Promoter Class of
shares

No of shares held in
4ggregate by holding

company

Percentage of
shares held

Percent4ge
change during the

year

Name of the shareholder No of shares held
in the comp.rny

Percentage of
shares held

lq;HARTTRET\
i IACC(iUi'l-lA:,r il;,'

\H+
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Notes to the Financial Statements for rhe vear ended 31 March 2025

9 Other equin
Retzuned earnings

-Statement of proht and loss

.\s per last balance shccr

.\dd: Profir/(loss) ftrr rhe lear

.\dd:( )rhcr comprchensivc incomc
\et de[rcit rn the statement ()[ pr()flt and Llss

10 Trade payables
'lirtal outstanding dues <lf micro enterpriscs and small enrerprises,
Total outstandrng dues <l[ credrtors other than micro enterpnses and small enterpflses

-Rcfcr notc no. 19

(4,0es.4r)

1.5-t

in lakhs

(3,ee5.+0)

(100.01)

(4,093.87) (.1,095.41)

L2.+ 1.21

0.05
t.24 1.29

schedule as at 31 March 2025

(t) \ls\lli-Not duc 1.21 1.2.+
(ir) \tSIII,.-t)ue
(iii) ( )thers

(n) Drsputcd ducs-\lS\11,.
(r ) Disputcd dues-( )thers

schedule as at 31 March 2024

\[SNIlr-\ot duc 't.21 1.21
(ii) NrS\rF.-Due
(iii) ()thers 0.05 0.05
(ir) Disputed ducs-\lS\lLr
(r) Disputed ducs-()rhers

11 Other financial liabilities
Business advances rcceivcd from related parn'

-Dl.l. IIome Dcr-clopers Ltmitcd

12 Other current liabilities
Sraruton dues palablc

4,100.92 +, t 65.92

4,100.92 4,165.92

0.1 1 0.ll
0.11 0.12

(fhis tpace ha.t been intentiona$ left b/ank)

,Q-

<(

* OUNTAI'iT!

EL

Particulars As at
3lMatch20?5

Particulars kss than l vear 1-2 vears 2-3 veans More ttran 3 years Total

Particulars Icss than l r'ear 1-2 vears 2-3 vears More than 3 vears Total
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March2025

in lakhs

298.+5

13 Other income
Interest income on fixed deposirs

Income tax refunds

14 Finance cost
Interest on borrorvings

Interest on TDS
Interest on Income Tax

15 Other expenses
Legal & professional
Rates and taxes

Patment to auditor
-^\uditor's remuneration
-Reimbursement o f expenses

-GST

0.37

3.1,7

3.s4 298.45

1-;2.-t3

0.06

0..t1

0.47 152.43

0.1.t

0.03

0.11

0.05

1.15 1.15

0.03

0.210.21

1.53 1.91

(lltis space ltas been intentiona/11' lefi blank)

Particulars Fot the yeat ended 31

Match2025
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

exPense

Defered tax

Minimum alternate tax credit reversed,/utilised (including eailier years)

(b) Rcconciliation of tax expenses ancl the accounting profit multiplied bv lndia's dornestic rax rare for 31 ivlarch 2025 ancl31 iVarch 2()2.1

r\ccountinu profir before inconre tax

- At countq"s statutory income tax rate (in 7r)

Tax Eftect oI amounts whjch are not deductible (taxable) in calculadng taxable income:

- F,xpense disallowed under income tax act, 1961

Expense allowed,rvhich is disallowed in previous year under income rax act,l961

Reversal o[ Mat credit

244.t2

244.12

1.54

0.39

(0..re)

144.11

36.27

38.84

0s.11)
244.12

244.72

17 Eamin$/(Lss) per equlty sharc

Errnings Pcr Sharc (EPS) is d€tcrmircd b$ed on thc nct proft aldbqr.ble to thc shir€holders' of rhe C(,mpanv. Basic ceninsp p€. sh,r. is compured using rhc {righted
rvcrag< number of sharcs outsbnding during the trs. Dilurd amings Ptr sherc is computcd usiDg thc wciEhtcd avcrage numbcr of comlnon .nd dilutive commoa
equivalent shtcs outstrnding dulhg rhe ),ear hcluding sharc opfi,ns, dccpr shcrc rhe rcsulr vould bc anridilurivc.

({ in lakhs)

Net profit attributable to equity shareholders

Profit/(l-oss) after tax

Profit attributable to equity shareholders

Nominal veluc of cqui$ sharc (Rs)

l7eighted 
^ver^ge 

number of equity shares used frrr computation olbasic earning per share

Earnings per equity share

Basic

Nominal value of equity share (Rs)

Weighted average number of equiry sharcs used to compute diluted earnings pcr share

Diluted

T[.rc Follov'ingis a reconcillarion of the equitv shares used in thc computation o[basic and dilutcd carnings per cquin'shares

t.54

t.54

50,050

3.08

10

50,050

3.08

10

50,050

(1ee.81)

10.0

50,050.0

(t99.82\

10

Basic eamings per equity share - weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
Total number of equiw shares outstanding at the begninng of the year

Total number of c<1uin sharcs outstanding at thc end of the ycar

weightcd avcrage nurrber of c<1uiq' sharcs outstanding uscd t() computc basic I',PS

Diluted earnings per equity share - rveighted average number of equity shares outstanding

wcighted average nunrber oIequitv sharcs tbr basic EPS

weighted average numbcr oFequin' shares outstanding used to compute Dilutcd [l)S

50,050

50,050

50,0s0

50,050

50,050 50,050

50,050 50,050

50,050

(l'ltis tpa* lta.r heen intentionalh' fii ltlankl

UFL

50,050

Particulars For the year ended 31

March 2025

({ in lakhs)
For the year ended 31

March2024

Particulars

Particulars For the year ended 31

March 2025

For the year ended 31

March2024
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18 Raticr for the ended 31 March 2025

(r) (-r-rrrcnt rati() o.oo {).t)() 3. 12,, ,,
Reduction in ldlanccs rcccir-cd
trr,m relatcd prrrn'

(b) riltl( ) l ).oo o.rx) (.1.( X )o ,r N\(.) l)cbt scn'rcc r:ttit r \..\ _(l0g [.t tt t Rcductron in ()thcr lncomt.
(d) Rcturn ( )n r,1il( ) ().31 I ).t )2 l+.38.+6,' ,, Rcductiorr in(") ln turnot'cr rtttio \\ \.\ \\ \.\
(0 radc rcccivablc turn()\'r:r rati() \\ \\ \\ \.\
(r{) [urn(,\'rr ran( ) \\ \\ \\ \\
(h) furn( )\'cr r'ltl( )ct \.\ \.\ \\ \.\
(D et ratl( ) \\ \\ \.\ \\
(r) Rcturn on 0.+{ ) -0.07 -673.7 t" u Reduction in ( )ther Incomc
(k) Return ()n invcstment \.\ \\ \.\ \\

(-urrent Rati<r (-urrcnt .\sscts + (lurrent
Ratio -l'r>tll I)cbt - 'l'or;rl

(.) Debt Sen-ice (-tx'crage Rari<r lte ti rrc I n tercst 'l'and :l\ +F.arnings ttcms, (-< >sterccptionrrl rnadeIFinance tl.rcRcpaPrinciprl IlTtcnts during
ti rr n( )n-currcf l t cu rr( f] tpcriod borros-ings (including maturities)

Rcturn on rl1tl( ) \ct / Sharehr>lders'
U Iurn( )\'crIn

end orhers : .\(-ost oi land, Iots, consrructed Inlcntorics
(0 'l'radc reccilablc turn()\'er rati() Rclenue tiom operations : -\r-eragc'l'radc Receilables
/rr\ 'l'radc par-tblc turnovcr ratirr (-ost t,I llnd, plors, derclrrpmcnr rights. constructcd pr()perties and othcrs + .\r.eragc tcc()unts par.able

tllrn( )\'e r fitl( )\cr l'otal Sales - -lirtal

0 Net proht rario \ct Protjt rrtter Tar + Rclenuc tr'm .perati.ns
Rcturn on EBI'| - 'I'otal
Return ()n lnvestmcnt \(rt return on Inr-estmrnt + (-ost o[ Inr-estmcnt

(Tlti.: lpuLe ltu.; been intentiona$ klt hlankl

S no. Ratios For the year ended 31

*larchZt?S
For the year ended 31

March202l Variauce Explanation

S no. Ratios Formula

Dcbt

G"t o* rF.Ri:!'
i \nccouNTAI'Iii1'w
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Notes to the Financial statements for rhe vear ended 31 March 2025

19 l)ctails oidues ro \lrcrr end Small rlscs lls \IS\I I:I) 2o( )6 ro rhc esrcnr oiintirrmarion arailablc s.ith thc ( -ompalr_r':

20

The $(xe inform,rion regarding iuicn, Sm,ll and lledium Enterprises has beeo determined ro rhe extent such partres haye b€en identified on rhe basis of informatn,n

than disclosed abore.'Ihe same ha-s beo relied upoo br. the auditon.

Fiaanci.l Instmm. .

i) Fair values hierarchv

obscn-abiliu ofsignificanr inpu o rhe meNur€denr as fotb$s:

Lcvcl l: Quolsl price (unadiusrsl) in rcd\ e mnket for the dnanciat instrumenr
Lvcl2: InPut other thin quot€d prices included $ithin level 1 that are obsen able for the assets or liabitrdes, either rJirecrly or rndircctl.v
I-rrcI3: Unobsen able inpurs for rhe assers or lirbiliues

i0 Fair instrumcnts mcasurcd at tair value-recurring thir laluc mcasurcmenrs- Nil

iii) liarr value of instrumcnts rncasurcd at am()rtiscd c()st:

in lakhs

ir) Financial Instruments bv categon
The carning value and fair value of financial instrument bv categories as follo$,s:

in lakhs

2l Risk Management
).

'l'hr' (.ornpnnr's actiliries c,

oi thc (.rrrnp:tn\''s flsk rnrr'r

in rhc tlrr'lncill start.mtnrs.

xp.sc it t. rnirrkcr nsk. Lcluidrn' nsk and crcdit risk. 'l'l'rc (,omprrrrr.'s l)o rcctors Ir
.rgorrenr irarn(t.rk. "l'lris notc cxplirrns thc soLrrccs oInsk s-hich thc en r'(_!

rcsporrsibilin' tirr rhe csral:lishmcnt end or-t,rsieltr
rl rr,' cniln mrnages thc risk :utd rh! rcl.rt(.i irnprcr

A) Credit Risk
(.rtdit rtsk reft'rs ro,r risk that thc counterparrv r','ill dchult on ifs conrrircrual t rl>ligirti( )ns rusultins in c()rnp;ur\'. (.redit risk ,rriscs on litluid rrsscts, n,,n-
cLrrrcnt trnirncill ,rsstts, dcri\ irtitc .rsscts, trlrdc ;lnd ()rhcr rccci\;r[rlcs. l'l-rt cr )rTlpilnr dtrcs not lravc .rni' anJ rn rcspcct oi caslr tnd cash cquir',tlcnrs. rhc. s;tid:l'n()urlf ls lll cUrrcnt,lcc()LlIlt \.ir]r SclrtclLliccl I]:rnk u'ltcrc churccs oIi-]c.tirulr irrc mittilnrun.'l'll(.rnil\ltnLlln

d

l.l+ t.2+
'I'hc amount o[ inreresr paid bv rhc bur-er
,\Iicro Small irnd \[cdium [.lntcrprisc Dcr-cl.pment .\ct, 2(x)6 alrrng u.ith tlre
:rrr1()unts of thc pavmenr madc to rhc supplicr bevond thc appoinrcd tJav
during cach accounring lcar

irndiltTl( )Lln l- thc 1ntc drcst tlrerconLleprincipal trtunpaidremillnlng
:ISf I.l endthc i() erch

tn tcrms oi sccti()n 16. of thc

s

\k'dium I:nterprisc [)etekrprncnr \ct, 20o(r.

5rn.rl

untilfn( ) oI lntcrcst anddr.rc ti rr thc' i() lnPavrrblc period delar' makrng
ht rvhrcl'r it bccn tl;rr rhc .l( p,ritl bclorrd d^lappoinred ufln.q

LIIIr 'ltlr( )ur add rhc tntcrL'st ticd tunde r \ltcro ,rndlng sPccl

'Ihe amount oI intcrcst itccrucd and rem:rining unpaid ;rt tlre end o[ cach

intcrcst remaining due and pavable r:\-en in rhe
succecding rcars, until such date rvhen the interest dues as ab.r'e are
actuallv paid ro rhc small enrerprise frrr rlre purp()se of disallorvance as
dcductiblc c\pendirure under secti.n 23 .i rhe \licr. Small ancl \ledium
F.ntcrprise I)elelopmcnt . \ct, 2()06

'l'hc amount of [urtl-rcr

Financial Assets
(-ash and cash cquivalents [.elcl .1 r 3.31 ll.l t +.1() +.10
Bank balancc othcr than abotc [.cvcl 3 9.( )l 9.{) I()ther t-rnancial asse ts Lci'cl 3 o. [() (). l() (). I () {).1()
Total Financial Assets 13.41 13.41 t3.21 13.21
Financial Liabilities
[]orros'ings (lncluding Irrrcrcsr) Lelcl .3

'l'radc pa) ablc I -cvcl 3 l.l+ l.t+ t.2e 1.2()
( )rhcr tln;rncr',rl hlbrlrtir.,s I -clcl i +.lt)( r.9l +. I ()( ).91 +.165.e] -l.l (,5.92
Total Financial Liabilities 1,102.16 4,102.16 4,167.21 4,167.21

Financial Assets
(-ash lnd c:rsh eguivalcnrs Lcr cl i I 3..i I -t.lo
l];rnk birlancc orhcr rhln ;rbor c Lcr cl i ().( 

) I
( )rlrrr tinancirrl rrsscrs l.e r cl .l o. lo ().[(]
Total Financial Assets 13.41 13.21
Financial Liabilities
llorrorr in.qs (lncluding Intcrcsr) I-t'r.r'1.3
'l'rade pin:rl>lc l.cvcl 3 l.l+ 1.29
( )thcr tlnlnciel habilirics Levcl 3 +. lo().92 -1. l(r5.()l
Total Financial Liabilities 1,102.16 4,167.21

crrrnlanr''s ()rhcr tinilnci,rl .\ssers.
e\P(,stlrc ro rhc crcdit risk is ulual ft) tl)e crlrn.ltg itm6qrrt ,,i t[c

Particuhrs Aa at As at
3lMarch2025 31lllarcla2024

Particulars kvel 31 March 2025 5tMerchfr24
Cam'ineValue Fair Value Carrvins Value FairValue

ACCOUNTAT

Particutars [.evel 31 202s 3lMarch2024
FVTPL FVOCI Amortised Cost FVTPL FYOCI Amortieed Cost
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Notcs to the Fir.mi.t Sta.em€nts fo. th€ rta, endcd 3l March 2025

B) Uquidiry Risk

hcilih(s r., mcer oblisntx,ns shcn dut.

th. liqud,N ofrhe market in which rhc enrh openres.

Matudrie of fiarrcid li.biliries
'I'hu rablcs btlor analtsr thc (l.mpan)''s fif,ano: liab'uri(s inl.) rcl.vaflr mnrunn gn)upings basd on their c.ntmcrual marunues.

ln

C) M..Let Risk

.) Irt rcat Rett Risk

i) Li.biliries
The comPa'r\ 6xed ratc borm$ings ar. canied at amordsed cosr. Th(f rft rhcrefoft nor subiect ro inrerest mre dsk as defined in Ind .Ls 107, since neithcr rhe crrryingrmounr nor rh( furuft cash fl.,ss \ritt 0ucrur'( b(ause ,rfa change in mar'l,et interesr ntts.

ii) Arsets

no\rs vill flucruate bccause ofa change in marker inrerest rntes.

C.pit lM .gcntcnr

capital .equremefl$.

'l'rirde

( )tl.rcr t-rnirncial habilities l()( ).92

'l'radc

( )thcr tin.rncnl liebilirics

Sl March 2025 Lcse than l year t-5 veare
More than 5

,'earc
Total

Rorros ings (lncludinu Intcrcsr)

l.l+ 1.24

4,100.92

3lM*ch?f,?A Iees ftan l year 1-5 years
More than 5

vears
Total

Borrou'ings (lncludin.q Intercst)

1.29 1.29
+.165.91 4,165.92

fdfi*i*
\tO



KOLKATA INTE RNATI ONAL CONTVE NTION CENTRE LI M ITED
CIN No. t1701 01 DL2005Pt.C1 37319

Regd. office: lEJhandewalan Extn., Naaz Cinema Complex, Ncw Dclhi -110055
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

23 The HDI"TC Rank Limited had filed a recoverv claim against the ersr*'hile holding companv of the Company l-tnitech Umited, its group companies and promorers
before the Debt Recoverl';\ppellate Tribunal, New Delhi @R T) under The Recovery of Debm Due To Banks r\nd Financial Insritutions Act, 1993.

The Bank had also made the conlPanv as a Parw to thc recoven'clainr and rhe llon'ble DRT-,l, rruerv Dclhi has issued an Injunction against the conrpanr. from

amounting to Rs. 15,794.89/- lakhs, which is slrou'n under "()ther bank brrlances", r\ccordinglr,, the tllnk hacl rnarkcd a licn <:n such fixecl deposits.

During the previous year rhe above nrater had been settlctJ by bank aticr raking a p,r),nrcnt of { 8,155.00 lakhs againsr the said lien marked fixed deposits antl
released the fixed dcposit accordingly.

abovc Rule has been met

25 Related Party Disclosures

Information requircd to be disclosed under accounting sandard on "Rclatcd Parn, Disclosures,'

,) Relationship

i) Ultimate Parent Company:
Raidhani Investment & r\gencies Private Limited

ii) Intermediate Parent Company
DI.,F t,imited

ii) Parent Company:
DLF I-lome Developers t-imired (reld with (r nominees) *

iii) Fellow subsidiary company :

DLF IT Otficcs Chennai Privatc I-inritcd

b) Thc follorving ransaction u,ere carried out with related parties in the ordinary course of business

ln

Capitnl comnritment and conringent liabiliry as rrn .31 j\larch 2{)25 is Nil (p/\, - Nil)

Thc nct worth of the comPany is complctc\'crodcd as at i\Iarch 31,2025. Houcvcr, DLF Lirnitcci rhc intcrmcdiar).p;rrcnr c()r1p1n\. lras assurcd conrinucs
financial suPport for furure opcration oI rhe cornpanv. Based on this thc financials starclncnr of rhc cornpanv has bccn prcparcd on a gging concern basis.

No prtlvision for tax tirr thc ycar has bccn madc in thc accounts ls thcrc is nr> raxable inc<rmc undcr rhc- provisions of thc lnc6mc-T'ax i\cr, l9(rl. Thc

IND AS'l 2, thc detcrrccl rax assct havc not bccn recognizcd in thesc financial srarcmcnrs as ir is nor probable that raxable inc6mc,,vitl arisc in rhe
foresceablc future.

"fi[s]-ll'ftIw

26

27

28

Loan takcn 14l .00
l,oan rcfundcd back (er3..5.1) 2,000.00
Intercst expense 39.58 1 12.84
Advancc repaid 65.00 5,085.99

,elopers Ltd
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 31-Ntar-25 37-Mat24

Borrowing;

Inter:cst accrued bur n<lt due

Sharc capitai 5.01 5.(rl
Business advances 4,tu).92 4,165.92

Transactions undertaken the year Parent Fellow
DLF Homes Developers Limited DLF IT Offices Chennai Ptivate Limited

31-Mar-25 37-Mar?4 31-Mar-25 37-Mat-24

at the end ofvear Fellow Subsidiary Cornpany
DLF Energy Pvt Ltd



KOLKATA INTERNATIONAL CONVENTION CENTRE LIMITED
CIN No. U70101DL 2O0SpLCt37 339

Regd. Office: l-E Jhandervalan Extension, Naaz Cinema Complex, New Delhi -110055
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 3lMarch 20ZS

29 'l ho (i rmpanr's priman' business segmcnt is reflectcrJ ba.sed on principal br-rsiness activities carried rm bv thc Companr- i.e. devekrpmenr of roalestate prlects and all other relared activities, which as pcr I\l)-.\S._ l0g on..Seg,ncnr Reporting,as plescnbcd in the Companics(\ccounting standards) Rules' 2006 is considcred trr be the onlt rcportable segment.'fir. cu-p".r, i. ii-".;ir. "p"-org in India which isconsidered as a single gergraphical segment.

30 ln the rpini.n .f the B.ard of t)irect,rs current assets. bans an.l adr,'anccs have a value on realizati'n in the onlinan crurse of business atlcast equal to the amounr at which ther are stated in thc Balance shert anrl provisions for all known liabilitics hav" il;;;. "'

31 ()ther sratuton. infrrrmatiot frrr the vear ended 31 }Iarch 2025 and 3l March 202.1

(i)'fhe (J,mpanv dr,s n.t have anI benami propem, uhere anl pnrceeding has_becn initiared or pending against thc C.mpanr.for holding anvbenami properh' under the Benami I rensactions (l'rohibitirn) .ict, 1 988 (45 of 1 98g) anrj rul." -^,1" th"r.urld.r.

(ii) the (lompaov do oot havc an! trarNactiofls wth companies srruck off under Section 248 of the (iompaoies .\ct, 2013.

(iii) 'Ihe (iompany do not have anv charges or satisfaction which is r.et to be registercd with Registrar of Oompanics bet rnd the statuton.
PCri( 'd.

(iv)'Ihe Companv have not traded rrr invested in ca?t() (lurrencr (>r Yirual Currenc.l duriog the finaflcial 
'ear.

(v) The Companl has not advanced or kraned or invested fuods to anv other penion(s) or entin(ies), including foreign entrties (lntermediadcs)
with the undersranding that thc Intermrdian. shall:

(a) dirccd! or indirecdv lend rr iovest in other persons or entities i<Ientified in rnl manner wharsrrever bl orcn b(half()f thc (bmpan\.
(tltimate Benefi ciaries); or

(b) provide anv guarantee, securih or the like to or oo behdfofthe Llltimate Beneficiaries.

(vi) 'rhe Companv has oot received anl- fund from anv penon(s) or entiw(ies), including foreign entities (Fuoding parh, *1th rhc
understanding (whether recorded in wtiting or otherwise) that the Companl. shall:

(a) dkcdy or indirecdt lcnd or invesr in {)rher persons or cflrities identified in anr; maoner whasrxvcr bt or on behalfofthc Funding prtr
(flltimate Beneficiaries); or

(b) providc anr. guarantce, securin. or thc like on behalf of the Lrltimate Benefrciaries.

(vii)'fhc (irmpanl docs o.t have anl such transaction which is n.t recorderl in the books ofaccount that has been surrendererl or discbsed asinc.me io the tari assessments under the Incomc-tax .\ct, 1961 (such as, search or suncv or any other) ."1*^nrfr,-i.i rn. ,rf rhe lncome-tax.\ct. 1961.

(viii) The (irmpanv has n,t bcen declared wilful defaulter bv anl bank or finaocial instituti()o (x (;()vernmcnt or an\. (ioveroment authorit! ()r
othcr lender. in accorJancc with rh( guidelnes on wrlful ,leiaultcn i.*u"a U1, ,n. n...*" nr"t ,,iir.fl^l'- 

' - - 
'

(ix) The Gmpan! has crrnplied with thc number oflerers prcscribed under (ilause (87) of Section 2 of rhe o.mpanies .\ct, 2013 read rvith thc(lompanics $.estriction ,n oumber .f l.avcs) Rulcs, 201? fr.m thc date of thcir irnplcmentation.

I;or encl on bchelf ( )i tl.te [i rard oi dire ctors of
Kolkata International Convention Centre Limited

Sati sh Kumar Tyagi
I)l\: (Xi(X).3-l3l

I)irr.ctor

Rastogi
I)l\: 0892130+

l)ire ctorPlace: Gurugram
Date:23.04.25 v hg1E*
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